
 
 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Tuesday, April 21, 2015 
Breckenridge Council Chambers 

150 Ski Hill Road 
 

 
7:00pm Call To Order Of The April 21 Planning Commission Meeting; 7:00 P.M. Roll Call  
 

 Location Map 2 
 

 Approval Of Minutes 4 
 

 Approval Of Agenda  
 

7:05pm Consent Calendar  
1. Hawks Hideaway (SG) PL-2015-0057; 86 New England Drive 22 
2. Liberato Residence Addition (MGT) PL-2015-0065; 220 Royal Tiger Road 37 

 
7:15pm Town Council Report  
 

7:30pm Continued Hearings 49 
1. Shock Hill Overlook Master Plan Modification (MM) PL-2014-0174; 260 Shock Hill Drive. 

Commissioner comments and final decision on application. No public hearing. 
 

2. Shock Hill Overlook Subdivision (MM) PL-2014-0175; 260 Shock Hill Drive. Commissioner 
comments and final decision on application. No public hearing. 

 

 
8:15pm Town Project Hearings  

1. Summit County Recycling Center Dropoff (JP) PL-2015-0052; 284 Coyne Valley Road 50 
 

 Other  
1. Class C Subdivisions Approved for Q1, 2015 (JP) (Memo Only) 66 
2. Class D Majors Approved for Q1, 2015 (JP) (Memo Only) 69 

 
9:30pm Adjournment  
 
 
For further information, please contact the Planning Department at 970/453-3160. 
 
*The indicated times are intended only to be used as guides.  The order of projects, as well as the length of the 
discussion for each project, is at the discretion of the Commission.  We advise you to be present at the beginning of 
the meeting regardless of the estimated times. 
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PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm 
 
ROLL CALL 
Kate Christopher Gretchen Dudney Jim Lamb 
Ron Schuman Dave Pringle arrived at 7:03pm. 
Eric Mamula, Dan Schroder and Ben Brewer, Town Council Liaison, were absent. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
With no changes, the March 17, 2015, Planning Commission Minutes were approved as presented. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Ms. Puester announced that the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood Phase I Subdivision, 
PC#2014039, 710 Stables Road, was not ready for Final Hearing and would thus be heard as a Preliminary 
Hearing this evening, with a Final Hearing to occur at a later date. The Lincoln Park at the Wellington 
Neighborhood Master Plan, PC#2014038, will still be presented as a Final Hearing. 
 
Mr. Brewer is absent; therefore, Ms. Puester announced there will be no Town Council update. 
 
With no other changes, the April 7, 2015, Planning Commission Agenda was approved as presented. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
1) McLerran-Feldesman Residence (MGT) PL-2015-0015, 73 Penn Lode Drive 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Mr. Schuman: There is no north elevation in the packet; both are called south. This is on Pages 16-17 of the 

packet. Page 16 is north Page 17 is South. No issue on the plans; just wanted to make note of 
the issue. 

 
The Consent Calendar was approved as presented. 
 
TOWN COUNCIL REPORT: None. 
 
FINAL HEARINGS: 
1) Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood 7th Master Plan Modification (MM) PC#2014038, 710 
Stables Road 

Request from the public for a continuance. Having received two letters/emails from citizens requesting the 
meeting be continued to 21st, Ms. Christopher announced that per Rule 29 of the Planning Commissioner 
rules that the hearing may be continued for a good cause. Ms. Christopher welcomed the public to come 
forward. 
 
Mr. Sean Berg, 63 Rodeo Drive: Neighbors just now getting wind of changes. Don’t feel any of the  
pedestrian bridges are warranted. Finish old neighborhood first before moving on to the next one. 
 
Mr. Chris Tennal, 35 Rodeo Drive: I second the comment about finish the park and Wellington Neighborhood 
before moving on to next development phase. We’ve lived there for ten years. (Ms. Puester: We will still take 
public comment later during public comment. This public comment period is for addressing the need for a 
continuance of this item on the agenda.) (Mr. Tim Berry, Town Attorney: Ms. Christopher, when you get 
through, read the letters.) (Mr. Mosher: I received two single written requests that specifically requested 
continuance.)  
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Ms. Christopher: Does anyone else from the public wish to speak to the continuance? (Ms. Puester: The 
letters are on page 39 and 40 of the packet) The Florio’s letter on page 40 of the packet requested a 
continuance due to spring break and unable to attend the meeting. On page 39, Ms. Gretchen Hamilton 
requested a continuance for the same reason. Can we now hear from the applicant? 
 
Mr. David O’Neil: There are a couple reasons why this should be heard this evening. We’ve been at this 
submittal since October of 2013 and we are down to two issues: whether the bridge should be built and where 
the bus should go. Continuing it makes no sense as these two issues are not in the Planning Commission’s 
purview but Public Works. 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Ms. Christopher: Should we now take a vote on whether we should continue? 
Mr. Lamb: I am willing to continue just because this is a very important issue. 
Mr. Schuman: When is next meeting availability? (Ms. Puester: We do have several items already 

scheduled for the 21st of April Meeting.) 
Ms. Christopher: Additionally, Mr. Mosher is gone that meeting. 
Ms. Dudney: I don’t’ think we have to have Mr. Mosher present. We have received two letters implying 

this is unfair to be held during spring break. Nobody has spoken about that in the audience? 
Just a comment, I have very mixed feelings about this important issue; not only that the 
process needs to be fair and we observe legal protocol, which we have done. But, we want to 
be fair. The implication from the letters is that we are holding the hearing during spring 
break and it’s not fair. This could be misconstrued by the public that it is unfair. However, I 
weigh the disadvantage to the applicant having to wait two more weeks and the expense 
incurred vs. this perception of impropriety by the public. 

Ms. Christopher: Mr. Berry, any comments? (Mr. Berry: The Planning Commission Rules, particularly rule 
29, state the Planning Commission may postpone any hearing for good cause shown. Focus 
on one, has there been good cause shown or two, you want to continue it because you are 
missing some votes.) I feel the two letters written have been submitted to us in writing and 
are included in the packet. 

Mr. Pringle: The meeting has been legally noticed and they also have the opportunity to speak to the 
Town Council in a week on the same matter if they choose. We have a legal quorum for the 
Commission this evening; it is not necessary for every Commission member to be here. 
(From the audience: Ellen Brown, 22 Meadow Lark Green: I submitted a letter that has not 
been included in the packet. I submitted it to Mr. Mosher at 7:30am on April 1st. I heard you 
were going to vote and I am nervous my comments have not been heard.) (Mr. Mosher noted 
that he did not receive this email, but would accept the letter this evening.) 

 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to hear the item as noted on the agenda with no continuance. Mr. Schuman 
seconded. The motion was approved (4-1). 
 
Ms. Christopher explained the process to the audience. Ms. Puester distributed the email/letter from Ms. 
Brown to the Commission. 
 
Mr. Mosher presented a proposal to amend the approved Wellington Neighborhood Phase II Master Plan 
(PC#2005042) with the proposed development of 78 SFEs of single-family, duplex and triplex residential 
uses. This portion of the neighborhood is to be called “Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood”. There 
is no change in the previously approved density or uses. 
 
Changes from the January 20, 2015, preliminary hearing: 
1. The vehicular bridge across French Creek at Midnight Sun has been replaced with a pedestrian bridge. 
2. The final Phasing Plan is included. 

-5-



Town of Breckenridge  Date 04/07/2015 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting  Page 3 

 

3. A pedestrian bridge across French Creek to Central Park has been added.  
4. The Vern Johnson Memorial Park area (north of French Creek) has been identified. 
5. The potential “day-care/open space/ or other mutually acceptable use” property has been relocated to the 
west end of the development near Wellington Road.  

6. The Traffic Impact Analysis has been updated to include this phase of the development.  
7. The Master Plan Notes and Development Standards Matrix have been updated.  
8. A subdivision for the first phase has been submitted (separate application).  

 
The decision to eliminate vehicular bridge was discussed at length with Engineering and Public Works and it 
is now as the applicant initially wanted. Staff did get official word from Xcel and the parking and alley 
located inside their easement has been squared away. The existing Wellington Neighborhood has 9 right-of-
ways while Lincoln Park has 1, Bridge Street. Working with Public Works, slight modifications to the profile 
to Bridge Street were made to accommodate circulation for the Free Ride Bus, Town snow plows, and 
emergency service vehicles. Impacts to Bridge Street were negligible. The Guest Parking in front of each 
green has been pulled further away from the paving edge. Staff has also asked for landscaping to be removed 
out of the right of way. Both applicant and staff agreed this would be enough improvements to not hinder life 
safety. We have no concerns. 
 
Traffic study: At build-out of the Lincoln Park Subdivision, 45% of Lincoln Park traffic will use Wellington 
Road, 45% will use Reiling Road, and 10% will utilize Bridge Street. The report summarizes that there are 
minimal impacts to existing Wellington Neighborhood. Trail connections shown on the Trails Plan at the 
previous remain the same.  
 
As the wellington Neighborhood was started this in 1999 there is a list of requirements and commitments to 
be included by the end of the development.  One of these is an easement dedicated to the Town for the entire 
length of French Creek for the Town to monitor and maintain water quality. The Vern Johnson Memorial 
Park was already dedicated as part of 1st phase of Wellington Neighborhood; now joining it with Lincoln Park 
and it will have shed, picnic tables etc. The Bridge Street bus stop: the bus will stop near green space to allow 
more of neighbors to access the bus stop. 
 
There will be four phases to coincide with and will include these improvements. From the applicant:  
1. Phase 1 will include the portion of the Bridge Street right-of-way and the other improvements shown 
within block 1, plus the proposed Rodeo Pedestrian bridge connecting Reliance Green to Rodeo 
Drive. In addition, Phase 1 will include the improvement of Stables Road, (excluding paving) up to 
Alley 3a, which is located within Town of Breckenridge property to the west of Lincoln Park, up to 
and including the intersection with Bridge Street. It is anticipated that a public right-of-way (ROW) 
will be created by the Town for Stables Road, at least up to and including the intersection with Bridge 
Street and that easements will be granted by the Town for the Connections from Stables Road to 
Alleys 2a, 3a & 4a. 

2. Phase 2 will include the right-of-way and other improvements shown within Block 2, except for the 
Midnight Sun pedestrian bridge connecting from Lincoln Park to Queen of the West Road. This will 
be completed as part of Phase 3. Phase 2 will include the paving of Stables Road and Alley 2, 3a, & 
4a connections. In addition, prior to receiving the last certificate of Occupancy for the residences 
included within Phase 2, the bridge from Bridge Street, northeast of French Creek to Lincoln Park, 
southwest of French Creek shall be installed and a temporary turnaround sufficient in size to 
accommodate the Town's 29-foot long Free Ride buses will be graded and finished with road base. A 
new bus stop at the west side of the Logan Road and Bridge Street intersection will be constructed 
with a sign, bench, and accessible landing pad consistent with the Town's requirements. 

3. Phase 3 will include the ROW and other improvements shown within Block 3. The Vern Johnson 
Memorial Park and the Midnight Sun pedestrian bridge connection from Lincoln Park to Queen of the 
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West Road will be completed as part of Phase 3 prior to receiving the last Certificate of Occupancy 
for the residences included within Phase 3.  

4. Phase 4 will include the right-of-way and other improvements shown within Block 4, including 
specifically completion of Bridge Street to the previously installed Bridge Street bridge over French 
Creek. The Central Park pedestrian bridge connecting Lincoln Park to central park will be completed 
as part of Phase 4 prior to receiving the last Certificate of Occupancy for the residences included 
within Phase 4. Trails will also be completed during Phase 4. 

 
This phasing has been reviewed with Planning, Transit, Emergency Services and Engineering Staff with no 
concerns. 
 
Transit: Staff has heard a lot of public commentary about the transit design and phasing. Part of the second 
phase of this master plan is the bus stop. The existing bus stop is over 1,500 feet from the east side of existing 
neighborhood; Transit is ready to add a new bus stop, in accordance with the 2006 Master Plan, to the middle 
of the neighborhood at Bridge Street to serve more of the existing residents. Concerns have been expressed by 
neighbors about the needed bus turnaround at the end of Bridge Street. There may be more discussion in the 
future prior to this phase being finished; we are aware of the concerns of the neighbors. 
 
The applicant is planning to crush the on-site rock again as in past phases. Staff will process a Class D permit 
with special care taken for the time of year and noise.  
 
The master plan notes reflect the discussions from previous meetings regarding the garage locations/setbacks 
and how snow is shed off the roofs. Requiring one extra parking space for bonus rooms with water and sewer 
hook-up is now part of the Master Plan. The combined side yard setbacks increased from 10-feet to 12-feet 
for more breathing room. 
 
Point Analysis (Section 9-1-17-3): Staff has reviewed this application against applicable policies of the 
Development Code. Staff notes the following were exempt from point assessments as they are identified in the 
Annexation Agreement.  

• Lot sizes less than 5,000 square feet are allowed. (9-2-4-5: Subdivision Ordinance, Lot Dimensions, 
Improvements and Configuration) 

• Reduced building setbacks are allowed. (Development Code, 9-1-19-9A and 9R, Placement of 
Structures) 

• Allowance for more than four homes off a private drive (Engineering Standards, Section IV, Private 
Roadways and Driveways, B., 5) 

• Right of Way paving sections are less than 24-feet wide (Engineering Standards, I., Structural Design 
Criteria, Table 3.13 Design Elements Summary) 

• Private alleys are narrower than the suggested paving sections (Engineering Standards, I., Structural 
Design Criteria, Table 3.13 Design Elements Summary) 

 
Staff found the proposed modifications to the 2006 Master Plan complied with all Absolute Policies listed. 
The Wellington Neighborhood Phase II Master Plan (PC#2005042) received positive points under Policies 20/R 
Recreational Facilities and 24/R Social Community, Employee Housing. This modification will reflect the 
same. The total passing score is positive thirteen (+13) points. 
 
The applicants have worked diligently with Planning and Engineering Staff to accommodate the developer’s 
needs and the needs of the public. Staff reminded the Commission and the public that master plans may be 
modified in the future. 
 
The Planning Department recommended approval of the presented Point Analysis for Lincoln Park at the 
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Wellington Neighborhood Phase II, Master Plan Modification (7th Master Plan Amendment of Wellington 
Neighborhood Master Plan) PC#2014038, showing a passing score of positive thirteen (+13) points. 
 
The Planning Department recommended approval of the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood Phase II, 
Master Plan Modification (7th Master Plan Amendment of Wellington Neighborhood Master Plan)  
PC#2014038, with the presented Finding and Conditions. 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Ms. Dudney: At the last meeting, did I understand there was a choice between the Midnight Sun bridge and 

an increase of paving width on Bridge Street to 24’? (Mr. Mosher: Actually the paving section 
stays same 20-feet as all of neighborhood with 3-foot wide valley pans. Moving the guest 
parking and moving the landscape out of the right of way have freed up space.) Does staff 
believe we no longer have to widen road? (Mr. Mosher: Correct.) Ok. 

Mr. Schuman: The daycare site has to be agreed between whom, acceptable to whom? (Mr. Mosher: The 
Town and the applicant.) If the applicant goes away? (Mr. Mosher: The Town and the HOA.) 

 
Applicant Presentation:  
Mr. David O Neil: Thank you for hearing this tonight. Mr. Pringle, thank you for your motion. I am here, 
Tom Lyon is here, and Steve West is here. 15 years ago we were all here. We have come a very, very, very 
long way. Speaking of neighbors, obviously people really care about the neighborhood so we have succeeded 
in what we have created. We think that is great they have been hugely successful in process. The main points 
of contention seem to be the traffic, the bridge and the buses. We have to deal with constraints public works is 
working with. When you hear the objections tonight, the first relates to crossing at Bridge Street. Public 
Works relented so there is no vehicular crossing at Midnight Sun. Should there be one at Bridge? Second, 
what will interim bus routes be during construction? Public Works issue, not Planning Commission issue. We 
have 13 positive points; we should be good to go. 800 people live in neighborhood now; there are a lot who 
aren’t here. There are 130 already on the waiting list for Lincoln Park. The very first phase, we got through in 
one vote; we packed council chambers with people. The folks on wait list for Lincoln Park are not here. Mr. 
Mosher’s report is so well detailed he has been deep in the trees I want to step back and look at the forest. The 
vision has not changed throughout all of this. “Traditional Neighborhood” feel; I am very confident we will 
accomplish this with this phase. Sense of community, true sense of place; we fought Public Works 
extensively about smaller streets and connectivity for vehicles and pedestrians. If you stripped all the people 
out of Wellington what would you have? Giving back life to land that has been destroyed by mining. 
Encourage sustainable development. Pedestrian friendly with bus service; I spent a year lobbying to get the 
bus out there. We have done exactly what we have said we are going to do. Patterns really important;, we 
have been very sensitive to those. Safe plentiful connections. Variety of residences. 15 homes, triplexes 
dedicated to 80% AMI. Buildings with welcoming faces. Tom is really genius behind that. Well defined 
public realms. Greens are enormously popular. Lincoln Park helps promote sustainability. Solar and 
sustainable things added to homes themselves. Respected historical context. Learned a lot about building at 
9,600 feet. Last year with huge snow year guess what? The alleys worked. 
 
Mr. Tom Lyon: After Mr. Mosher and Mr. O’Neil’s presentations, not a whole lot more I can say. What we 
have done in Lincoln Park is a continuation of patterns that were successful in previous phases. We have 
learned a lot. Site is narrower and tapering and more like the upstream version of Wellington Neighborhood 
where it gets narrow. Single spine of Bridge Street with greens lined up on either side. Use of bridges to make 
pedestrian connections. Have streets, bridges, connections; also have system of alleys providing access for 
service functions which allows greens to be wonderful places, safe places for kids. We will link to existing 
trail system. Circles shown on the site plan are an 800’ radius (showed on map) for placement of bus stops. 
New bus stop in Lincoln Park with pullout. Adding seat and minor shelter at second stop at Logan and Bridge 
Streets stop. Update to setbacks to allow for better snow storage. We still want to get a variety of homes. We 
have got 18 different plans or slightly less than that; 12 or 13 different floor plans; there will be triplexes and 
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duplexes and 8 different single family residences. We’ve updated all plans we use, added storage, adde some 
high tech features for lighting (turning on lights with cell phones) etc. Also, we changed look of architecture, 
the color schemes are a little more “earthy”. Lincoln Park is based on mining history with new trellises for 
each of the greens to differentiate them. 
 
Mr. O’Neil: Everyone agrees first phase has been success only issues tonight relate to Public Works. With 
respect to the Planning Commission, we have 13 positive points. If we get your support, the next discussion 
will be discussion on the subdivision for the first homes. (Mr. Schuman: The triplexes are in first phase?) 
Correct. (Mr. Schuman: The bus stop at Impatient Green; there will be a pullout there with a shelter?) (Mr. 
Mosher: Bench, handicap ramp accessible.) A lot of plowing issues with landscape now. (Mr. Mosher: The 
bus is not going to pull off the road.) 
 
Ms. Christopher opened the hearing to public comment. 
 
Ms. Ellen Brown, 22 Meadow Lark Green: You will see a lot of information I am not going to go into in my 
letter. First, I want to validate the traffic impact study. I read it, but planning is not my career. Want to make 
sure traffic study was updated post no bridge at Midnight Sun. (Mr. Mosher: The traffic study was done with 
only the Bridge Street bridge.) Second request is that the impact study be amended for the interim bus plan. I 
don’t think it took into account 4 runs per hour on Bridge Street; this is more of a request. As neighbor, I want 
to request it. My ten-year old and my six-year old were angry they could not come tonight. We earlier owned 
a home on Cedar Green and then bought a market value home on Meadow Lark. We have looked at property 
around Breckenridge; the sole reason we stayed in Wellington was for our children. There is not an impact 
study done for play. Very sad to me that that’s not acknowledged. A lot of subtle changes not having a 
playground a lot of greens sidewalks are narrow and stepped so the kids don’t play because they want to ride 
bikes. Next issue is just if only 10% of people are going to use bridge for access I don’t understand why we 
need it at all. If just for the bus then I question what we heard; is there not an opportunity to consider having a 
bus stop up here in neighborhood (showed on map)? I understand we need a bridge and emergency vehicle 
access, I’m having a hard time with the bus. Last two points: there is a real misunderstanding in our 
neighborhood as to how we are to participate and if there is any way to educate us. Last thing we live in a 
town called Celebration Florida. We moved there because we thought it would be a great family location. 
There are villages. Our children cannot go out and play unattended because vehicles fly in and out. Before we 
put a vehicular bridge we need to consider safe outdoor play. (Mr. Pringle: Ms. Brown, it looks like you’ve 
got the participation thing down perfect.) 
 
Ms. Kelly Sanders, 83 Bridge Street: I agree with everything Ms. Brown just said especially the play factor. 
Bridge Street does not have a green, just a flagstone circle that will apparently have a bus stop. Central Park is 
snow storage if you go up now full of snow and in the summer full of dog poop. Not a park for the kids to 
play in so, they take to the street. Not sure where the snow storage is going to go. Another issue is traffic 
impact. The traffic study was December 2013 prior to Wellington Neighborhood even being completed. You 
did not have everyone living here so the numbers must obviously be skewed. You say 10% are going to travel 
Lincoln Park to Bridge; was it considered what traffic is going to come down Logan? Right now I watch a 
million cars a day go down there and slam on their brakes when they get to the concrete barrier. Having bus 
running 4 times per hour I am not in support. The Bus survey did not include Bridge Street. 70% of residents 
along Logan were supportive of temporary bus route. What are traffic calming measures on new Bridge Street 
in Lincoln Park? (Mr. Mosher: They have not been addressed on this submittal. We did have past discussion 
about crossing signage and crosswalks. Additional signs were turned down by applicant.) (Mr. O’Neil: There 
is quite a bit of traffic so there will be crosswalks and signage.) Painted crosswalks will not be seen 9 months 
out of year. 130 people on wait list not here they would be extremely concerned about not a single stop sign 
on Bridge Street. My kids are old enough but kids in Lincoln Park will be young families young kids, teenage 
drivers from Wellington Neighborhood will be flying down the street. I don’t have a problem with the bridge 
but Public Works wants it so I suggest it be made more emergency vehicles only and regular traffic not be 

-9-



Town of Breckenridge  Date 04/07/2015 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting  Page 7 

 

allowed to travel that way. 
 
Ms. Gretchen Hamilton, 11 Bridge Street: Safety of our kids. I live in the house across from the proposed 
bridge. Cars are already flying down that short stretch of road. Concerned about length of road with no 
turnoffs, no traffic signs, no slow down. With a 6% grade the kids get going really, really quickly. I videoed 
five kids from ages of 4 to 10. I told them to slow down and watch for cars, not one did. I understand kids are 
not to play in the street but, in our neighborhood that is what they do. Hate to see someone get hurt. At the 
other meeting, Midnight Sun it was decided to eliminate that bridge.  But, more of my comments have to do 
with Town Council versus Planning Commission, but would like to see a solution for that bridge 
 
Ms. Kelly Owens, 82 Midnight Sun: I would like to thank you for removing the Midnight Sun bridge from 
plan, definitely a smart move for overall safety. Echo what others have said with Bridge Street connection. 
Concern that there is some code that needs to be followed for emergency vehicles. Does anyone know what 
that code is? I emailed Tom at the Town and did not get a response. (Ms. Shannon Smith, Town Engineer: 
The Code is the subdivision standards. Also, the Wellington Neighborhood has always been one project; we 
have always treated it as one project.) I do understand that in the past there have been reasons that it was 
appropriate to connect neighborhoods, I wish we had the ability to not connect these two neighborhoods 
vehicularly. If we do things just because that is what we have always done, that’s really, well, I’ll leave it at 
that. I would love it if the applicant could come up with something to make it so miserable to drive that road 
that no one would want to drive it, neighbors wouldn’t drive it, bus would go two miles an hour, which would 
be great. 
 
Ms. Marna Walker, 87 Bridge Street: My young one under age of 2 who uses Bridge Street; I too echo what 
everyone else has said. If there is an ability to work out an alternative plan to not have the bus go across the 
bridge twice an hour, I don’t think it would be appropriate to have a cul-de-sac for a neighborhood that won’t 
exist for 6 years, that would be great. Thanks. 
 
Mr. Sean Berg, 63 Rodeo Drive: I feel my neighbors concerns about the bridge. But, why can’t developer 
finish the Vern Johnson park before he builds any more houses? Beautiful spaces in front of Rodeo at the park 
location; but one is used as snow storage dump, the other is Mr. O’Neil’s construction vehicle parking. I have 
to call the police to move the construction vehicles as it is not legal parking there. 
 
Ms. Mary Gervais, 67 Rodeo Drive: I live right next to Mr. Berg, I totally echo let’s finish the first 
Wellington Neighborhood before we start building other things. The HOA has had volunteers to build park, 
scatter seed, etc. If developer would just buy it for us. I empathize with Bridge Street; I am teacher and coach 
for 25 years and I care about kids. But, I don’t think the best place for kids to play is in streets. I am really 
careful when I ride my bicycle because there are kids everywhere. Part of what we have to teach kids is the 
safest place to play is yards, greens and parks. There are kids in streets all over the neighborhoods they like to 
ride their bikes. More stop signs wherever we can put them. Also, kids need to be taught to stop at stop signs 
on their bikes. Slow down traffic and lets teach our children and “yes” for pedestrian crossings. 
 
Mr. Doug Franks, : Ms. Gervais said everything I want to; I don’t have kids but I see kids riding bikes the 
way I did but I learned to watch for cars. Kids need to respect the streets and need to understand there are 
people driving around. Kids need to use the streets safely. 
 
Mr. Ryan Sanders, 82 Bridge Street: Yes, cars have right of way and it is super important about the 
connections but we are not connecting anything for 5-6 years why are we not connecting right away? (Mr. 
O’Neil: Expense. There would be a $2 million load if we had to put the Bridge Street through first.) We are 
putting street through? (Mr. O’Neil: I don’t want the bridge either.) The neighborhood has kids riding bikes 
and we shut down this town and the neighborhood for bike races all the time, it seems like we should make it 
equitable for everybody. 
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Ms. Jen Bosick, 9022 Airport Road: I am interested in buying in Lincoln Park and I wanted to voice that it’s a 
really hard time to find housing. Interest rates are low. I like all the points that have been raised. On the 
bridge; what if we had gate that went down like top of gondola just for emergency vehicles? Interest rates are 
low I would like to see this go through so we can buy and become homeowners. 
 
Mr. Ian Hamilton, 11 Bridge Street: I agree with a majority of the comments. I would like to speak about the 
phasing plan which seems remarkably contrived. I would like to see if the developer does not have to build 
vehicular bridge early, then he could build foot bridges and park first and vehicular bridge at the end, find an 
alternative for the bus. Ask developer to post a bond for promise of bridge at the end. Monetary promise to 
build bridge at last phase. Then phasing would be done more sensibly. Adding traffic to situation that does not 
need any more traffic. 
 
There was no further public comment, and the hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Mr. Schuman: Bus, temporary bus route, Mr. Tom Daugherty, Town Engineer, said not doable? (Mr. 

Mosher: Since the 2006 Master Plan the bus and bridge has been shown on Bridge Street.) 
Test they did last winter was fairly successful all the way up Logan and down Logan. (Mr. 
Mosher: Transit took under consideration.) (Ms Smith: We feel it would put burden on 
Logan Road when bus service was never proposed on Logan and people bought homes 
knowing this. Put the stop and route the bus on Bridge because it was always proposed on 
Bridge.) Four buses on Bridge Street per hour versus two buses even if short term fix. (Mr. 
Mosher: We are sticking to the master plan this evening. Phase two is when bridge comes 
into play next year. There is time to discuss.) 

Ms. Christopher: Why are we not starting on the other end of the neighborhood and moving toward Bridge? Is 
that Public Works? (Mr. O’Neil: We have always started at that end because of access and 
utilities.) (Mr. Mosher: Starting east to west drives traffic opposite way placing all the 
burden on Bridge Street.) Remember a lot of people on Logan also complained. 

Mr. Schuman: Test run done by Town was pretty successful. (Ms. Smith: A lot of ridership so transit 
wanted to keep that route going.) The opposition was from a few vocal opponents. 

Ms. Christopher: So is this negotiable? (Mr. Mosher: The Master Plan could always be modified again.) Just 
want to reflect the comments that were made this evening on transit. Why is the memorial 
park area being pushed into phase two? (Applause from audience.) (Mr. O’Neil: Trying to 
allocate some of the cost pressure to get pedestrian crossings and utilities done. First phase is 
heavy load because of the 80% AMI units.) There are 200 people out there without a park. 
(Applause from the audience.) 

Ms. Dudney: Is it not true that the phase affects the cost? There is a correlation between affordable 
housing and cost of project. 

Mr. Schuman: What is timing of phasing? (Mr. O’Neil: average of 20 homes per year, so four years if 
economy stays the way it is.) 

Mr. Pringle: I want to thank everybody for showing up tonight. I appreciate your participation. Mr. 
O’Neil was right when he described all the passion you have for your neighborhood. All of 
this is what has been envisioned. The bridge across Bridge Street is pretty much why the 
street was called that. Ms. Smith was right; all of this development was envisioned as one 
project. Public Works has oversight we have to take what they show us. We were able to 
eliminate one connection. One of your concerns, homeowners meetings would be good place 
to try to voice concerns. We can use our process to try to get notice on when items will come 
forward, when the park will be developed etc. Other than that, the Town Council can be 
approached. I appreciate your moving the daycare facility from the back of the parcel out 
adjacent to the park there. Park and day care center better solution. I appreciate the 
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pedestrian connections back and forth; that’s a real good solution. This is really coming 
together as has been envisioned the last 15 years. Applaud Mr. O’Neil for getting to the 
finish line and applaud you for holding his feet to the fire. Kids in the streets since day one; I 
share your concerns; there are solutions out there for most everyone of your concerns. All 
we have to do is work through those I don’t think there is anything brought up tonight that 
we can’t solve. I’m in favor of the project. 

Mr. Lamb: I agree with everything Mr. Pringle said and Ms. Smith. This was master planned as one 
neighborhood and it has been that way for 15 years. It has 13 positive points and no negative 
points. I can’t deny something with 13 positive points and no negative. I played in the street 
as a child and look, here I am. You can come to Council next week as they can override us. I 
can support this as presented as well. 

Mr. Schuman: I think the key for everyone who opposes the bus route, you need to speak to Tom 
Daugherty (Public Works Director) and he is in charge of that. It is following the master 
plan and I support it. 

Ms. Christopher: I do support the reduction of the vehicular crossings and added pedestrian crossings are 
great. Daycare move is very smart. I do feel the applicant needs to look at snow storage, 
traffic calming, and stop signs; try to find best fit between the neighborhoods. I encourage 
you to start on the park in phase one; get a little area for kids to play while increase in traffic 
and bus then finish off with next phase. 

 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the point analysis for the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood 
7th Master Plan Modification, PC#2014038, 710 Stables Road showing positive score of 13 points. Mr. 
Schuman seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (5-0). 
 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to approve the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood 7th Master Plan 
Modification, PC#2014038, 710 Stables Road, with the presented findings and conditions. Mr. Schuman 
seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (5-0). 
 
(The Commission took a short break) 
 
PRELIMINARY HEARINGS: 
1) Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood Phase I Subdivision (MM) PC#2014039, 710 Stables Road 
Mr. Mosher stated there were no letters asking for a continuance. Mr. Mosher presented a proposal to 
subdivide a portion of Phase 1 of the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood into 15 saleable lots and 
private open space in accordance with the Lincoln Park at the Wellington Neighborhood 7th Master Plan 
Modification. Mr. Mosher denoted the location of the project on the map. 
 
The reason we are hearing this as a preliminary is because of several documents that need to be submitted and 
approved by Engineering and those are in process at this time. One of these has to do with the wetlands in the 
area. Road names are easy; we already had Bridge Street named, and this is the continuation of Bridge Street. 
 
The proposed lot layout, green design and landscaping follows the patterns of the Lincoln Park at the 
Wellington Neighborhood Master Plan. Staff welcomed any comments from the Commission regarding the 
information presented. With the inclusion of the requested material, Staff recommends this application return 
for a final review. 
 
Applicant Presentation: Mr. O’Neil: I think Mr. Mosher has been incredibly thorough on this. 
 
Ms. Christopher opened the hearing to public comment. There was no public comment, and the hearing was 
closed. 
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Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Mr. Pringle: I don’t see any glaring issues just hope we get the times, dates and triggers handled so there 

aren’t any surprises. 
Mr. Schuman: I appreciate you putting the under 80% AMI in this first phase.  
 
FINAL HEARINGS: 
2) Shock Hill Overlook Master Plan Modification (MM) PL-2014-0174, 260 Shock Hill Drive 
Ms. Christopher explained the process to the public, including the request for continuance. 
 
Mr. Berry: Both the applicant and one of the interested parties have retained counsel. Mr. Carlson and his 
client request that this matter be continued. Mr. Willis should be able to respond then you can make your 
decision. It is the same cause standard we talked about previously. 
 
Mr. Ron Carlson: I have an office in Frisco and am here representing the Quigley’s and some other residents. 
The report only came out on Thursday evening, woefully short on time to make a thorough analysis. We 
believe there is a fundamental flaw that existing zoning is not feasible. In short time we have been interested 
in this they are interested in this as it is already shown. If you are starting from false premise this can’t be 
built on as master planned. It relates to Policy 39. From Thursday to Tuesday is not a time frame to make an 
analysis other than to make an attempt at a review.  
 
Applicant: Mr. Chris Canfield: I am the applicant. We did get a little bit of forewarning; just a few hours with 
respect to a continuance. We were candidly surprised with the preliminary hearing having issues after 
showing we would reduce density. You can’t please all the people all the time. We are curious to see what 
Mr. Willis has to say because we also had little time to prepare for the topic of a continuance. 
 
Mr. Kent Willis: My office is here in Breckenridge. I represent the applicant tonight. Not sure where I want to 
start. First of all, the Town has complied with all of its normal notice requirements and procedures there is 
nothing out of the ordinary. Mr. Carlson contacted my office last Thursday when I was at an all day meeting. 
I replied Friday and he was out all day and he was out all day Monday and returning today. If he was not able 
to review this material I would submit it was his scheduling problem it should not be our problem. I have 
been involved in this process since the beginning. Informed the process was straightforward and did not need 
to attend but applicant asked me to attend. I skipped one meeting and cancelled the other to be here tonight. 
We were to be in Boston the week of April 20 which is week of your next meeting. If matter is continued I 
have a schedule problem. Mr. Mosher and several of other planning staff will be gone that next meeting too. 
This project is detailed enough that Mr. Mosher needs be here to present his staff report. I find it really 
disturbing that Mr. Carlson would suggest that there are other parties interested in this property. Not what the 
Town should care about or be interested in. We have a contract on this property. Nothing to do with this 
applicant or this process. This application stands on its own. We think Mr. Carlson and his clients have not 
shown good cause. Mr. Carlson has larger office and more staff than mine does. In my opinion we are ready 
to go. We are prepared to have this application heard tonight. 
 
Mr. Carlson: First of all as far as my communication I obtained these documents online and my wife has end 
stage renal failure in Arizona. I am the only full time legal in my office. Question is what is a master plan? 
Policy 39 and state laws describe it. Master plans are not just a suggestion or full zoning but they do have 
meaning. Don’t just get to change on a whim. Master plan is notice of what is to happen to a property. You 
are getting a false representation from the applicant that this is what it should look like. Up in Shock Hill 
there is a lot of input from community. The applicant can’t come in here and say I just don’t want to do that; 
that is not what the application is for. 
 
Scott Neal, Fargo, North Dakota: I am one of owners of property. With respect to our buyer, I elected not to 
speak at the last meeting. In last 30 days we have engaged the community; we have gotten a lot more buy-in 
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from the community. With all smoke and mirrors the attorneys are presenting, let’s just hear the applicant. 
 
Mr. John Quigley, 67 Wild Cat Road: I was one of first owners in Shock Hill. One of things that has bothered 
us is one of the key premises was that the lot was no longer viable and the only option was duplexes. If that is 
the basic premise, and the only option is duplexes, then why – unsolicited, I want that stated for the record – 
unsolicited, have I received two inquiries from people interested in buying and developing a lodge? I asked is 
it viable? One of the things that have come out of this thing is an analysis and the seller signed this thing; he 
signed that it is viable. We have in our possession three interests in the property. One is seller, one is a major 
hotel chain, the third one is SB Capital. You can look them up. I have a letter from them, they have developed 
a project in Steamboat, resorts in Mexico, resorts in the Caribbean. Why would they approach us and say it is 
viable if it is not? This is the last piece of property in town capable of a five-star development. This was very 
short notification. This was Easter weekend, in case you forgot. We did this review in two days. My question 
is why can’t we have time to review and make our concerns known? We have issues here that need to be 
resolved and need to be understood. I ask for your understanding to make this happen. 
 
Ms. Patricia Walker, 56 Wild Cat Road: I was the 2nd purchaser in Shock Hill. I lived here in 2006 to 2008 
when process was going on with John Niemi. I am also on the design review board. One concern is Tract E 
has its own design review board. I would like to see the continuance. 
 
Mr. Ryan Bennett, 576 Peerless Drive: I have a residence at 576 Peerless Drive which abuts the property. 
Regarding the continuance; frankly, I don’t think having lawyers present is a valid basis for a continuance. I 
think we have the people here and we need to move forward for a decision. 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Mr. Pringle: Can I ask Mr. Berry a legal question? We have an application in front of us; everything in 

front of us is legal. I understand both sides of this argument but I believe we have an 
obligation to follow the process. I don’t know that there is any legal and factual reason not to 
change the master plan. (Mr. Berry: The only issue in front of you now is to decide to 
continue or not.) 

Ms. Dudney: What would be accomplished with a continuance? (Mr. Carlson: We would hope to be able 
to add to the feasibility of the project under the current master plan, to do a thorough 
economic analysis.) 

Mr. Pringle: There has been due process from the Town. (Mr. Carlson: This does not have the points to 
merit approval. We would hope to add that analysis plus some further analysis regarding 
architectural guidelines. Claim same change as Tract C change. This application language is 
not the same as what you did on Tract C. We want to be able to present those legal issues in 
a reasoned way instead of a rushed way.) 

Ms. Christopher: Economic feasibility is not us, the Planning Commission. We just look at what comes before 
us, does it meet the Code? Anything “money” is not us.  

Ms. Dudney: We could proceed to hear this and there may be issues that come up to create continuance. I 
don’t think viability is an issue. Sorry for your personal issues; likewise I struggled to 
review in the short time period, but I am not in favor of a continuance. I think we should 
hear the issue and see. 

Mr. Schuman: I agree with Ms. Dudney; we have been presented with a valid packet in a timely manner 
and I think we should proceed. 

Mr. Pringle: I agree. 
Mr. Lamb: I agree. 
 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to go proceed with the application. Mr. Schuman seconded and the motion was 
approved unanimously (5-0). 
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Mr. Mosher presented a proposal by the applicant to amend the 2007 Shock Hill Master Plan and, in 
accordance with Policy 39 of the Development Code, master plan Tract E for the development of up to 20 
units in the form of duplexes and/or cluster single family homes. The proposed modification proposes to utilize 
no more than 31.25 residential SFEs at 1,600 square feet per SFE of the existing 60.7 SFEs. As a result, 29.45 
SFEs of residential development rights will be sunsetted. Additionally, none of the 5.3 SFEs of commercial 
density will be used and will also be sunsetted. 
 
Land Use District 10 allows townhomes subject to the master plan. Current master plan may include up to 5,300 
square feet of commercial. The master plan takes precedence over the Land Use Guidelines. The site is currently 
undeveloped except for gondola mid station and sales office. The sales center will be taken away when they get 
three units on the property as that density will be part of the density used for the development. 
 
The original Shock Hill Master Plan from 1997 has been modified three times. The first change was in 
another area from multi-family to single family. The second amendment abandoned the Nordic center and 
lodge and changed to cluster single family. The third from multi-family to lodge. This one for Tract E would 
go to cluster single family or townhome. This proposal is only to modify Tract E from lodge to duplex/cluster 
single family and reduce SFEs. 
 
Changes since the February 3, 2015, Preliminary Hearing: 
1. The illustrative plan has been modified showing:  

a. A mix of duplex and cluster single-family units with increased separation. 
b. Redesigned private access drive with larger front yard buffer. 
c. Existing trees, master plan trees and proposed development trees for the entire tract. 

2. The Master Plan Notes have been revised to provide more detail based on Commissioner comments 
and to abide with the Shock Hill Design Guidelines with some additions. 

3. The buried consolidated waste rock piles have been added to the plans and information provided on 
their impact to development on the property. 

 
No extended vesting is requested, and there are no recent code changes that would affect this application. 
 
The Land Use Guidelines support this use. Recommend contemporary architecture and all new development 
is to be compatible with the existing adjacent site. Abutting properties have been developed with master plan 
changes to become duplex use. This comes out of the Land Use Guidelines. This proposal is significantly 
reducing the existing density from the existing master plan on the site. Supportive of the Joint Upper Blue 
Master Plan. Staff had no concerns. Architectural compatibility. Staff went back and forth with applicant. 
Master plan notes will state specifically the terms and conditions of an approved master plan. 
 
On Tract E, each building shall be individually reviewed by the Shock Hill Design review board and shall 
adhere to the Shock Hill Design Guidelines. There will be extra landscape buffering compared to other 
recently approved Shock Hill neighboring properties. (Mr. Pringle: Will we see these applications?) (Mr. 
Mosher: They will come in as Class D Majors, which are staff level approvals, unless there are any points 
assigned, then the Commission would review.) We have received verbal approval from Andy Carlberg, Upper 
Blue Sanitation District, that the spas can be drained into the sewer system for this property. 
 
Hazardous Materials: This addresses three previously buried hazardous piles which you saw in PC#2012041. 
There was waste rock from mining. The previous owner completed Phase 1 and Phase 2 of waste remediation. 
The piles were capped with clean fill dirt and topsoil and the owner has submitted Reception 998561 which 
places restriction on excavation and modification of the piles, which is not allowed. This restriction runs with 
the land and was co-created with the Colorado Department of Health and Environment. The Town, in a 
nutshell, will be noticed if there is any change to these covenants. Most likely there will be double fencing 
around these areas during any construction near them. Public Works was fine with findings that Tetra Tech 

-15-



Town of Breckenridge  Date 04/07/2015 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting  Page 13 

 

had come up with that there are no setbacks. It is up to the applicant and developer to not disturb these rock 
piles. 
 
Point Analysis (Section: 9-1-17-3): Staff has included a point analysis and found the application meets all 
absolute policies and we found no reason to assign positive or negative points for this Master Plan. 
 
The applicants and agent heard the concerns expressed by the Commission at the last hearing. Staff guided the 
applicants and agents with the proposed changes based on the related Development Code policies. The site 
impacts related to density (buffering, privacy, and landscaping) have been identified under Site and 
Environmental Design (Policy 7/R). The concerns about the architecture have been addressed with the Master 
Plan Notes specifically identifying that all of the proposed buildings will conform to the guidelines established by 
the governing Shock Hill Design Review Board. The architecture guidelines and related master notes address the 
concerns that were expressed with regard to Architectural Compatibility (Policies 5/A & 5/R). This application is 
seeking to change the use from lodge to duplex and cluster single-family residential in conformance with the 
underlying Land Use Guidelines recommended uses. 
 
The density of the existing master plan will be reduced with the unused density being sunsetted. With the 
reduction of overall density and the modifications to the illustrative master plan, the added site buffering between 
units and to the abutting properties has improved from preliminary. Staff believes these changes have addressed 
concerns expressed by the Commission at the last hearing regarding Policy 7, Site and Environmental Design. 
The revised Master Plan notes address the concerns related to Policy 5, Architectural Compatibility. 
 
Staff recommended the Planning Commission approve the presented Point Analysis for the Shock Hill Overlook 
Master Plan, (an amendment of Tract E of the 2007 Second Amended Shock Hill Master Plan for the Shock Hill 
Subdivision Property), PL-2104-0174.  
 
Staff recommended approval of the Shock Hill Overlook Master Plan, (an amendment of Tract E of the 2007 
Second Amended Shock Hill Master Plan for the Shock Hill Subdivision Property), PL-2104-0174, with the 
presented Findings and Conditions. 
 
Commissioner Questions / Comments: 
Mr. Schuman: I understand the master plan notes, but want to verify the master plan notes will guide this tract 

and the Shock Hill Design Review Board will review. 
Mr. Pringle: There is no evidence there will be a separate board? (Mr. Mosher: This is the first I heard of it 

this evening.) 
Ms. Dudney: Underlying Land Use District is 2 units per acre and up to 8-plex is allowed and townhouses are 

allowed and there are 6.6 acres. (Mr. Mosher: If there was no master plan, yes.) So master plan 
was presented and approved for the lodge and 60.7 SFEs, no townhouses, so now we are 
looking at change in use to be compatible with Land Use District, but there is no change to 
density that came with the master plan? This plan is 4.6 units per acre. (Mr. Mosher: Discussion 
came up how did the 60.7 SFEs end up on this tract? The original master plan came in at 2 UPA 
overall and density was moved around, less in certain areas of the subdivision, more here.) 
Based on that discussion, 4.6 units per acre is acceptable because it’s less than the 60 SFEs? 
(Mr. Mosher: Correct.) 

 
Applicant Presentation:  
Mr. Chris Canfield: I am a 15-year resident of this Town. Special thanks to the Town. Mr. Mosher did a very 
thorough job. We worked with staff to address Commission comments from preliminary hearing we also did 
what we could to work with the neighbors. I was a little surprised believed this would be universally accepted. 
Most predominantly the old drive was a simple symmetrical oval coming off the right-of-way. It 
accomplished a fit test but we heard from Commission, neighbors and ourselves that by moving access away 
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we were then able to move structures away from gondola and then able to move away from parallel drives. 
We sprinkled in 3 single family homes with the benefit of greater curb appeal. Added buffering. Note #3 
under landscaping: 70 additional trees is up from 60 before (prelim). Each individual site has a predetermined 
number of trees and landscaping. Mr. Mamula asked we do a comparative analysis and we were able to be 
virtually identical to cottages across the street and Shock Hill Landing is less dense. We heard questions with 
5/A and 5/R, Architectural Compatibility. We tried to put that to rest and put note in master plan that we 
would abide by Shock Hill Design Guidelines. On prevailing Shock Hill Design Guidelines on page 70, the 
variances are only with good cause. Each of the submissions we have put forth with staff, and staff is going to 
monitor. We are not here to build spaceships; the market guides us we understand and respect the makeup of 
Shock Hill. It’s not our goal to become radically different and it is our goal to adhere to master plan notes. We 
worked hard to address Commission comments and did what we could to address the neighborhood concerns. 
One of primary concerns we heard with preliminary is that notification process was inadequate. I agree it may 
be, but we are not able to modify that; we have to stick to the rules. But we did the best we could to address 
the neighbors we gave the notice to every resident through the HOA. We attended the meeting and we chatted 
for 45 minutes and answered good questions. We gave an overview and I indicated to them if they would 
provide a liaison and they appointed Alpine Edge and I made a commitment to let them know. Friday 
morning at 9am I did that, I emailed Alpine Edge and said here’s the packet here’s the link, please let the 
owners know they can reach out to Mike Mosher and us and we did hear from some of those folks who are in 
the audience tonight. The letters in packet are mostly from neighbors immediately adjacent. I appreciate their 
support. Their process worked for us. Commission comments were heard and we believe we have addressed 
them all. We are sunsetting a significant number of SFEs. Moving commercial away from outlying areas and 
back into Town, extinguishing 5,000 square feet of commercial. As Vice Chair Christopher noted, we 
evaluate compatible with the neighborhood I know it is compatible. This is a very, very high end project we 
believe we have no concerns across the board and pass the fit test. I hope we can approve this tonight. 
 
(The Commission took a short break.) 
 
Applicant Presentation (continued): Suzanne Allen, Architect for the Applicant: If you included the area of 
Tract E2 which is part of this property you would be about 3-units per acre, way lower than any other 
development around and we are giving that to the Town as open space.  
 
Ms. Christopher opened the hearing to public comment. 
 
Mr. John Quigley, 67 Wild Cat Road: I am fighting a horrible cold I appreciate you hearing our request to 
continue. Two key items: 1) this should revert back to LUG 10 if a change from lodge to duplex. 2) Shock 
Hill Design Review Guidelines. In the February 3rd packet, each building shall be reviewed by the new Tract 
E Shock Hill Design Review Board. (Ms. Dudney: What are you quoting?) The February 3 packet. Governing 
Board is still the applicant. Tract C immediately adjacent in plan documents, what it states is “each building 
will also be reviewed by the Shock Hill Homeowners Design Review Guidelines”. The second item refers to 
the master plan notes shall comply with current guidelines with the following amendments. In our opinion the 
applicant does not have the ability to amend the guidelines. First being directed to change our documents, yes 
we can give variances. Second real distinction that applicant can control the design review board that is not 
the same design review board. First want to make changes to design review board second want to be 
overseeing authority. Three single family homes were added; still think density is too much. They are going 
to put 20 units on roughly the same sized land area that two single family homes take up (with my house and 
my neighbors). Three single family homes; want to make sure those homes go through the same review 
process make sure they do not change through the Class C process. Compliment the applicant going through 
our homeowners to communicate with all owners. Expressed concerns about changing a master plan use and 
300-foot notice requirement. One of the concerns we have if it is that easy to change the master plan thank 
you for at least considering our request for an extension. You have the whole staff working for you I don’t 
have a whole staff working for me. I don’t have that knowledge base so we brought in Mr. Carlson who does 
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has that knowledge so again thank you for that consideration. I want to make a comment about the viability 
whether it’s your concern or not. Originally a lodge always has been since I have owned in Shock Hill and 
many of the 17 original owners expected this. This is something the sellers told us when they asked for an 
extension for their project. We will take into consideration the results tonight and proceed with the Town as 
we need to. This is too big a project for a 300’ rule. I have spoken to some of the Town Council about this and 
they agree with me. Thank you for your time and for listening. (Ms. Christopher: On page 53 of the packet 
regarding the proposed master plan notes, what’s on the table? Each building shall be reviewed by the review 
board, is that the same thing?) (Mr. Willis: I am not willing to comment on that right now. Item H, 
Architectural Design shall comply with Shock Hill design review plan with four exceptions?) That’s this two 
day thing is really a bother to us especially over a holiday weekend. 
 
Ms. Patricia Walker, 56 Wild Cat Road: I may be able to assist as current member of Shock Hill Design 
Review Board we have had conversations with Tom Begley. Tract E has always had its’ own design review 
board; they did not want owners to have a say on the lodge. Concern as a member of the design review board 
Lot 2 on Penn Lode was approved before anyone had chance to approve. It is very modern, sets a precedent. 
We have had several applications since then stating we should be able to build a contemporary home because 
of Lot 2. I oppose this. I bought because of the amenities on the lot; this is the premier lot in Shock Hill. I was 
the liaison during the time with John Niemi with 18 letters opposed to this and 3 for. You have three or four 
for this and a majority are against it. Perhaps in this process you would reach out to every single homeowner 
and get their opinion. During the process with John Niemi, there was no middle ground. I thought I was being 
nice being the liaison and I got beat up. The majority I have talked to they are not in favor of this. Unless they 
are willing to give up the specific and separate design review board, then there is no guarantee that the 
guidelines are going to be followed. (Mr. Quigley handed his comment letter to Commission.) 
 
Mr. Ryan Bennett, 576 Peerless Drive: An observation, there have been a number of modifications to the 
master plan, so precedent is set. Confusing around design review board looking at amended and restated 
declarations state review area B is for lots C, E, F and G, which shall be review board B review board B for 
reviewing area B. Like to ask Planning Commission a question, how does a hotel, given the current 
development, work with Shock Hill? Transportation issues, not owners, don’t see how it works. Traffic 
burden not designed to handle traffic. Decrease in density is well in line with community views that are 
clearly voiced in the Joint Upper Blue Master Plan. I would like to thank the applicant. I am most impacted by 
this development. Mr. Canfield is the first guy to reach out to me; no other developer has nor the HOA. I am 
very supportive of what these guys are presenting. 
 
Mr.  Ron Carlson: I know as a former planning commissioner it’s hard to ignore what everyone feels about 
this. There have been mistakes in analyzing this; start with Policy 39. The type and intensity of uses proposed; 
this proposal changes the intensity and the type. Two: to estimate the general character of the development on 
the Board when it was approved for the present configuration of Tract E, what kind of amenities were going 
to be available to the neighborhood? All were going to participate in a club. Putting in a bunch of duplexes 
does not meet the character. This is what was approved; if you look at surrounding tracts, those have not 
changed, this is a substantial change. A change in ownership is not a basis for a change in the master plan. In 
addition to what’s in the code there is state statute; if we go back and look at the density the whole thing about 
moving the density around this still is not the underlying density. It should be 2 units per acre; there should be 
13 units here not 20. There should be negative points for the density. When you went back on Tract C, it went 
back to the 2 units per acre; why does this not go back? 5/A and 5/R; I think the question is why does this say 
each bldg shall be reviewed by the design review board if the intent is for the applicant to have their own 
design review board for this lot? That is reason enough to turn this down. In the present form, there is still the 
basis for denial. Policy 37/R, permeable surface, is another assumption. I talked to a civil engineer and he 
indicated that you can’t make an assumption of that until you make a study of historical runoff points. He said 
there should be negative points. Minimum there should be hydrology study to check runoff rates. Policy 8/A, 
ridgeline: one item totally ignored is fire wise requirements. If they are put in effect, buildings are going to be 
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exposed to the ridgeline. I think in an effort to keep it brief as well as the limited amount of time there should 
be negative points on impermeable, negative points on ridgeline. Density is miscalculated and should have 
negative points. Architecture need to be cleared up. 
 
Mr. Kent Willis: I don’t want to belabor the point but want to address the design review board and design 
guidelines. Mr. Quigley is correct; neither the Town nor the applicant can modify the design review 
guidelines. The way I read Town’s conditions is we have to comply with the design review guidelines AND 
these four criteria. I don’t know if there is incompatibility between design review guidelines and these four 
points, then that is what we have to do. Attempting to create some supplement to these guidelines. Mr. 
Bennett started the analysis and thank you very much I drafted these covenants but once I understood the 
criteria was, cover two design areas A and B, B being tracts B, C, D, E and G. B was more dense, some 
commercial one A and one B as I understand it they have the two boards but only one set of guidelines the 
guidelines we have to comply with are the same as every other member has to abide by. What I think  is 
incorrect is Mr. Quigley and Ms. Walker said this applicant controls design review board B. Owners in Tracts 
C, E, F, and G elect that design review board. I don’t think there has been an election to create that board in 
years. If there is an election than owner has right to elect to that board same as tracts C, E, F, and G. Tract E 
does not have a majority of those votes. I don’t believe this applicant can control the board. I don’t think there 
needs to be any change to this. I don’t think the Town can control this. Those are the things I wanted to try to 
provide some clarification on. Not sure I can respond to what Mr. Carlson said. Policy 39; yes, we are 
changing the type and intensity and the character, the question is - is that an acceptable change to this 
Committee or not? We all know a master plan can be changed; this one has been amended several times. I 
don’t think that’s really why we are here we are here as Mr. Bennett said does this proposal reflect the true 
character of the neighborhood? I don’t think it makes sense that it does not. 
 
Ms. Suzanne Allen: The architectural guidelines as they currently stand reflect single family for example they 
state garage doors can’t face street. In certain cases you see garage door we want to make it nicer go above 
and beyond. Garage doors may not face public right of way, or Shock Hill Drive. Let’s not have them face the 
main street. They will face our private drive. 
 
There was no further public comment and the hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Berry: I need to meet with the Planning Commission in Executive Session. (Mr. Quigley: Why, why can’t 
we be here?) They (the Planning Commission) are my client. I have matters to discuss with them as private 
attorney client privilege. If you have questions etc., please voice those now, if not, would like to present in 
form of motion. (Mr. Pringle: With respect to design review board?) We will talk to that in exec session. (Ms. 
Dudney: I respectfully am requesting information about the condition to not change single family home back 
to duplex.) (Mr. Willis: Fair request.) (Ms. Dudney: The underlying guidelines allow for contemporary 
architecture, this is an important thing.) (Ms. Allen: We took that out of the master plan notes. Allowed under 
land use guidelines.) (Mr. Willis: We will talk and come back to you.) 
 
Mr. Lamb made a motion that the Planning Commission go into executive session pursuant to Paragraph 4(b) 
of Section 24-6-402, C.R.S., relating to conferences with the Town Attorney for purposes of receiving legal 
advice on specific legal questions. Mr. Schuman seconded. Ms. Christopher reiterated that a motion has been 
made for the Planning Commission to go into executive session pursuant to Paragraph 4(b) of Section 24-6-
402, C.R.S., relating to conferences with the Town Attorney for purposes of receiving legal advice on specific 
legal questions. The subject matter of the executive session includes confidential discussions with the Town 
Attorney concerning the Shock Hill Tract E Master Plan application. The motion was carried unanimously (5-
0) and the Commission went into executive session at 11:00pm. 
 
Mr. Lamb made a motion to come out of executive session at 11:26pm. Mr. Pringle seconded. 
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Ms. Christopher: Mr. Willis, have you conferred with the applicant regarding the Cluster single family and 
duplexes? (Mr. Willis: with regard to making the Master Plan a “site specific plan” - Mr. 
Mosher informed me we can’t do a site plan per section A under Policy 39/A).) (Mr. 
Mosher: We can’t have this represent a site specific master plan; we have to come back with 
separate Class A application.) After meeting with the Town Attorney, we would like to 
continue this meeting to the 21st of April. No public comment will be heard at that meeting. 
(Mr. Willis: This meeting is closed. So when you reconvene on the 21st, no public comment 
from me or Mr. Carlson or anybody else?) Correct. The Commission will review the record 
and the two additional Commissioners will have to sit through the entire tape of tonight in 
order to participate should they choose. (Mr. Willis: We would rather get it done sooner 
rather than later, but my presence is not required then. We are not excited about your 
decision, but the 21st is better than some other date into the future.) (Mr. Canfield: What 
about the bundle of letters we are receiving?) Public Comment is done. We have to get our 
legal items in a row and we will then render our decision. (Mr. Willis: I wanted a decision 
tonight but ok.) 

 
Mr. Pringle made a motion to continue the Shock Hill Overlook Master Plan Modification, PL-2014-0174, 
260 Shock Hill Drive, with the presented findings and conditions, to the April 21st, 2015, Planning 
Commission meeting. Mr. Schuman seconded, and the motion was carried unanimously (5-0). 
 
3) Shock Hill Overlook Subdivision (MM) PL-2014-0175, 260 Shock Hill Drive 
Ms. Christopher explained again the need for a discussion on whether to continue this application.  
 
Mr. Kent Willis: These are two separate agenda items. If you bring it back, then there would be public 
comment about the subdivision map. (Mr. Berry: You could take testimony tonight and then continue and do 
the decision at the next meeting to give everyone who came to comment this evening a chance to comment. 
This is then the same process as the master plan modification.) (Ms. Christopher: Ok.) 
 
Mr. Mosher presented a proposal to subdivide Tract E of Shock Hill into Tract E-1 (4.361 acres) as the 
development area and Tract E-2 (2.308 acres) which shall be dedicated as public open space. (Future 
resubdivisions of footprint lots of each development site will be processed as separate Class C Subdivision 
permits.) 
 
Changes since the February 3, 2015, Preliminary Hearing: 
1) A 10-foot snow stacking easement has been added along the right of way fronting this subdivision.  
2) The existing buried consolidated rock piles are shown on the plat. 
3) Plat notes addressing the consolidated rock piles have been added. 

 
Open space portion will contain trail portions. No additional landscaping proposed on Tract E-2. No concerns 
from engineering firm on grading and drainage. The Town Engineering staff is to review and approve prior to 
recordation. Landscaping associated with master plan. Prior to recordation of plat, report on drainage must be 
updated. Covenant for maintenance of detention ponds by applicant. No additional street lighting. Far exceeds 
10% dedicated open space. 
 
Staff found that the proposed subdivision meets the requirements of the Subdivision Standards. Subsequent to 
recordation of the subdivision plat, Tract E-2 will be dedicated to the Town. Special care will be taken to 
protect the Cucumber Gulch Overlay Protection District. Staff recommended approval of the Shock Hill Tract E 
Resubdivision, PL-2014-0175, with the presented Findings and Conditions. 
 
Applicant Presentation:  
Mr. Kent Willis: We did not spend much time on this one. I think it is straightforward; many of same 
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conditions that are in the master plan proposal unless you have questions for us, we are fine with it as 
presented. 
 
Ms. Christopher opened the hearing to public comment. 
 
Mr. Ron Carlson: The only things I think are applicable are requiring an updated runoff report. Will that be 
what Mr. Mosher mentioned will be updated? I think the notes should be the same as on the master plan. (Mr. 
Mosher: There was a drainage report done for the whole subdivision.) That to me is just a technical thing. 
What about putting up signs about the boreal toad habitat? (Mr. Willis: It is in the master plan and we plan on 
putting up signs.)You should be required to put in three toads. (Mr. Truckey: We found two toads in 
Cucumber Gulch this past summer. That’s the first time that has happened in many years.) 
 
Mr. John Quigley, 67 Wild Cat Road: On the road, is this any different than what they stated with the lodge? 
(Mr. Mosher: These are the same parcels.)  
 
There was no further public comment, and the hearing was closed. 
  
Mr. Lamb made a motion to continue the Shock Hill Overlook Subdivision, PL-2014-0175, 260 Shock Hill 
Drive, with the presented findings and conditions, to the April 21, 2015, Planning Commission meeting. Mr. 
Schuman seconded, the motion was carried unanimously (5-0). 
 
OTHER STAFF ISSUES: 
1) Off Street Parking Chapter Update (JP) (Memo Only) Ms. Puester: We wanted to update the Planning 
Commission. Let us know if you have concerns, if so, we will move it to next meeting. If not, we will put 
into the Town Council packet tomorrow for next week’s Town Council meeting. (Mr. Pringle: It’s great. 
It’s just what we were talking about.) Good, then I will put into the packet tomorrow for next week’s 
Town Council meeting. 

 
ADJOURNMENT: 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:43 pm. 
 
    
  Kate Christopher, Vice Chair 
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Project Title:

Proposal:

Project Name/PC#:

Project Manager:

PC Meeting Date:

Date of Report:

Property Owner:

Agent:

Proposed Use:

Address:

Legal Description:

Area of Site in Square Feet: 18,090 sq. ft. 0.42 acres

Existing Site Conditions:

Areas of building: Proposed Square Footage

Lower Level: 1,741 sq. ft. 377 sq. ft. underground (does not count towards mass)

Main Level: 2,640 sq. ft.

Upper Level: 375 sq. ft.

Garage: 715 sq. ft.

Total: 5,471 sq. ft.

Shane Greenburg

Hawk's Hideaway (Smith Residence)

Class C Single Family Development Review Check List

Build a new 5,471 square foot single family residence

April 14, 2015

The site is heavily vegetated with small to medium sized lodgepole pine.   No speciman trees exist on the site.  
Slopes range from 10% on the building site to 60% near New England Drive.

April 21, 2015

PL-2015-0057

 

Code Policies (Policy #) 

Mark and Brandi Smith

Tyler Mikolajczak - BHH Partners

Single Family Residence 

86 New England Drive

Lot 5, Block 1, Warrior's Mark West Filing #5

Land Use District (2A/2R):

Density (3A/3R): Allowed: unlimited Proposed: 4,756 sq. ft.

Mass (4R):

Allowed: 4,500 sq. ft. 
(excludes underground square 
footage and up to 900 sq. ft. of 
garage)

Proposed: 4,379 sq. ft.

F.A.R.

No. of Main Residence Bedrooms:

No. of Main Residence Bathrooms:

Height (6A/6R):*

 Drip line of Building/Non-Permeable Sq. Ft.: 3,310 sq. ft. 18.30%

Hard Surface/Non-Permeable Sq. Ft.: 3,755 sq. ft. 20.76%

Open Space / Permeable: 11,025 sq. ft. 60.95%

Required Square Footage: 939 sq. ft. 25% of paved surfaces is required

Proposed Square Footage: 1,218 sq. ft. (32.44% of paved surfaces)

Yes 132 sq. ft. at the garage apron

Required:

Proposed:

Fireplaces (30A/30R):

Number of Gas Fired:

Outdoor Heated Space (33A/33R):

Lot Coverage/Open Space (21R):

Snowstack (13A/13R):

1 Gas Fired

2 spaces

2 spaces

1:4.13 FAR

33.7 feet overall

5 bedrooms

6.5 bathrooms

30-5 - Residential, not to exceed 6 UPA

Code Policies (Policy #) 

Parking (18A/18/R):

*Max height of 35’ for single family outside Conservation District unless  otherwise stated on the recorded plat
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No. of EPA Phase II Wood Burning:

Building/Disturbance Envelope?      

Setbacks (9A/9R):

Architectural Compatibility (5/A & 5/R):

Exterior Materials: 

Roof:

Garage Doors:

Planting Type Quantity Size

Aspen 21 3" caliper 50% multi-stem

Colorado Blue Spruce 5 2@10'; 2@12'; 1@14'

Englemann Spruce 3 12'

Bristlecone Pine 2 12'

Potentilla 10 Shrubs (eg. 5 Gal.)

Buffalo Juniper 10 Shrubs (eg. 5 Gal.)

Peking Cotoneaster 10 Shrubs (eg. 5 Gal.)

Platted setbacks 

Front: 35 ft. - Required: 25 ft.

Side: 7.5 ft. - Required: 7.5 ft. 

Side: 12 ft. - Required: 7.5 ft. 

Rear: 35 ft. - Required: 25 ft.

Landscaping (22A/22R):

Residence is architecturally compatible with the neighborhood

Insulated Masonite - color to match vertical siding

1 EPA Phase II

2x12 Horizontal siding & Board and Batten vertical siding - 'Bison Brown',  Stone Venner - Telluride Stone 'Rico 
Stack'

Composition shingles - Weathered Wood

Defensible Space (22A): 

Drainage (27A/27R): 

Driveway Slope:

Point Analysis (Sec. 9-1-17-3):      

Staff Action:      

Comments:      

Additional Conditions of Approval:      

Complies

8.00%

Positive drainage away from the structure

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant will obtain an encroachment license for any retaining 
walls and vegetation within the town right-of-way and make any modifications requested by the town streets and 
engineering departments.   The encroachment has been approved by the engineering and street departments.  

This property is subject to a mass size limitation under Policy 4A, Mass (Neighborhood Preservation Policy).  
The proposed residence meets the requirements of being under 4,500 sq. ft.   Retaining walls will be a maximum 
of 4 feet tall.     

Staff finds that negative four(-4) points are warranted under Policy 7R Site and Environmental Design for the 
driveway design,  negative one(-1) point under Policy 33R Energy Conservation for a heated garage apron, 
positive four(+4) points under Policy 22R Landscaping, and positive one(+1) point under Policy Policy 33R 
Energy Conservation for a HERS Index rating. This results in a passing point analysis of zero (0) points. 

Past precedents for landscaping points include:

PC#2014004 - 105 N. Gold Flake Terrace (4 points)
20 Aspen (3" minimum caliper) 
10 Colorado Blue Spruce (6@10', 2@12', 2@14')  
12 Cistena Plum shrub (5 gallon) 
12 Jackman Potentilla (5 gallon)  
8 Twinberry Honeysuckle (5 gallon)  
 
PC#2012069 - 20 New England Drive (2 points)
18 Aspen (9@2 1/2", 9@3" caliper)
6 Colorado Spruce - (3@8', 3@10')  
12 Potentilla - 5 gallon  
12 Buffalo Juniper - 5 gallon  
12 Peking Cotoneaster - 5 gallon

PC#2004145 - 86 New England Drive (4 points) - Nearly identical design at the same location
20 Aspen (2” caliper, 50% multistem)
16 Spruce (8@6’-8’, 8@8’-10’)

The Community Development Department has approved the single family residence on Warriors Mark West 
Filing #5, Block 1, Lot 5, PL-2015-0057, with a passing point analysis of zero (0) points, with the attached 
Standard Findings and Conditions.
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Final Hearing Impact Analysis
Project:  Warriors Mark West #5, Block 1, Lot 5 (Hawks Hideaway) Positive Points +5 
PC# PL-2015-0057 >0

Date: 4/1/2015 Negative Points - 5
Staff:   Shane Greenburg <0

Total Allocation: 0
Items left blank are either not applicable or have no comment

Sect. Policy Range Points Comments
1/A Codes, Correlative Documents & Plat Notes Complies
2/A Land Use Guidelines Complies
2/R Land Use Guidelines - Uses 4x(-3/+2)
2/R Land Use Guidelines -  Relationship To Other Districts 2x(-2/0)
2/R Land Use Guidelines - Nuisances 3x(-2/0)
3/A Density/Intensity Complies
3/R Density/ Intensity Guidelines 5x (-2>-20)
4/R Mass 5x (-2>-20)
5/A Architectural Compatibility / Historic Priority Policies Complies
5/R Architectural Compatibility - Aesthetics 3x(-2/+2)
5/R Architectural Compatibility / Conservation District 5x(-5/0)

5/R
Architectural Compatibility H.D. / Above Ground Density 12 
UPA

(-3>-18)

5/R
Architectural Compatibility H.D. / Above Ground Density 10 
UPA

(-3>-6)

6/A Building Height Complies
6/R Relative Building Height - General Provisions 1X(-2,+2)

For all structures except Single Family and Duplex Units outside 
the Historic District

6/R Building Height Inside H.D. - 23 feet (-1>-3)
6/R Building Height Inside H.D. - 25 feet (-1>-5)
6/R Building Height Outside H.D. / Stories (-5>-20)
6/R Density in roof structure 1x(+1/-1)
6/R Broken, interesting roof forms that step down at the edges 1x(+1/-1)

For all Single Family and Duplex Units outside the Conservation 
District

6/R Density in roof structure 1x(+1/-1)
6/R Broken, interesting roof forms that step down at the edges 1x(+1/-1)
6/R Minimum pitch of eight in twelve (8:12) 1x(0/+1)
7/R Site and Environmental Design - General Provisions 2X(-2/+2)
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Site Design and Grading 2X(-2/+2)
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Site Buffering 4X(-2/+2)
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Retaining Walls 2X(-2/+2)

7/R
Site and Environmental Design / Driveways and Site Circulation 
Systems

4X(-2/+2) - 4
Excessive driveway design resulting in 
additional site disturbance

7/R Site and Environmental Design / Site Privacy 2X(-1/+1)
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Wetlands 2X(0/+2) 

7/R
Site and Environmental Design / Significant Natural Features 2X(-2/+2)

8/A Ridgeline and Hillside Development Complies
9/A Placement of Structures Complies
9/R Placement of Structures - Public Safety 2x(-2/+2)
9/R Placement of Structures - Adverse Effects 3x(-2/0)
9/R Placement of Structures - Public Snow Storage 4x(-2/0)
9/R Placement of Structures - Setbacks 3x(0/-3)
12/A Signs Complies
13/A Snow Removal/Storage Complies
13/R Snow Removal/Storage - Snow Storage Area 4x(-2/+2)
14/A Storage Complies
14/R Storage 2x(-2/0)
15/A Refuse Complies

15/R
Refuse - Dumpster enclosure incorporated in principal structure 1x(+1)

15/R Refuse - Rehabilitated historic shed as trash enclosure 1x(+2)

15/R
Refuse - Dumpster sharing with neighboring property (on site) 1x(+2)

16/A Internal Circulation Complies
16/R Internal Circulation / Accessibility 3x(-2/+2)
16/R Internal Circulation - Drive Through Operations 3x(-2/0)
17/A External Circulation Complies
18/A Parking Complies
18/R Parking - General Requirements 1x( -2/+2)
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18/R Parking-Public View/Usage 2x(-2/+2)
18/R Parking - Joint Parking Facilities 1x(+1)
18/R Parking - Common Driveways 1x(+1)
18/R Parking - Downtown Service Area 2x( -2+2)
19/A Loading Complies
20/R Recreation Facilities 3x(-2/+2)
21/R Open Space - Private Open Space 3x(-2/+2)
21/R Open Space - Public Open Space 3x(0/+2)
22/A Landscaping Complies
22/R Landscaping 2x(-1/+3) +4 Above average landscape plan
24/A Social Community Complies
24/R Social Community - Employee Housing 1x(-10/+10)
24/R Social Community - Community Need 3x(0/+2)
24/R Social Community - Social Services 4x(-2/+2)
24/R Social Community - Meeting and Conference Rooms 3x(0/+2)
24/R Social Community - Historic Preservation 3x(0/+5)

24/R
Social Community - Historic Preservation/Restoration - Benefit +3/6/9/12/15

25/R Transit 4x(-2/+2)
26/A Infrastructure Complies
26/R Infrastructure - Capital Improvements 4x(-2/+2)
27/A Drainage Complies
27/R Drainage - Municipal Drainage System 3x(0/+2)
28/A Utilities - Power lines Complies
29/A Construction Activities Complies
30/A Air Quality Complies
30/R Air Quality -  wood-burning  appliance in restaurant/bar -2
30/R Beyond the provisions of Policy 30/A 2x(0/+2)
31/A Water Quality Complies
31/R Water Quality - Water Criteria 3x(0/+2)
32/A Water Conservation Complies
33/R Energy Conservation - Renewable Energy Sources 3x(0/+2)
33/R Energy Conservation - Energy Conservation 3x(-2/+2)

HERS index for Residential Buildings
33/R Obtaining a HERS index +1 +1 Obtain a HERS index
33/R HERS rating = 61-80 +2
33/R HERS rating = 41-60 +3
33/R HERS rating = 19-40 +4
33/R HERS rating = 1-20 +5
33/R HERS rating = 0 +6

Commercial Buildings - % energy saved beyond the IECC minimum 
standards

33/R Savings of 10%-19% +1
33/R Savings of 20%-29% +3
33/R Savings of 30%-39% +4
33/R Savings of 40%-49% +5
33/R Savings of 50%-59% +6
33/R Savings of 60%-69% +7
33/R Savings of 70%-79% +8
33/R Savings of 80% + +9
33/R Heated driveway, sidewalk, plaza, etc. 1X(-3/0) - 1 Heated garage apron <200 sq ft

33/R
Outdoor commercial or common space residential gas fireplace 
(per fireplace)

1X(-1/0)

33/R Large Outdoor Water Feature 1X(-1/0)
Other Design Feature 1X(-2/+2)

34/A Hazardous Conditions Complies
34/R Hazardous Conditions - Floodway Improvements 3x(0/+2)
35/A Subdivision Complies
36/A Temporary Structures Complies
37/A Special Areas Complies
37/R Community Entrance 4x(-2/0)
37/R Individual Sites 3x(-2/+2)
37/R Blue River 2x(0/+2)
37R Cucumber Gulch/Setbacks 2x(0/+2)
37R Cucumber Gulch/Impervious Surfaces 1x(0/-2)
38/A Home Occupation Complies
39/A Master Plan Complies
40/A Chalet House Complies
41/A Satellite Earth Station Antennas Complies
42/A Exterior Loudspeakers Complies
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43/A Public Art Complies
43/R Public Art 1x(0/+1)
44/A Radio Broadcasts Complies
45/A Special Commercial Events Complies
46/A Exterior Lighting Complies
47/A Fences, Gates And Gateway Entrance Monuments Complies
48/A Voluntary Defensible Space Complies
49/A Vendor Carts Complies
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE 
 

Hawk’s Hideaway Residence 
Block 1, Lot 5, Warrior’s Mark West Filing #5 

86 New England Drive 
PL-2015-0057 

 
FINDINGS 

 
1. The project is in accord with the Development Code and does not propose a prohibited use. 
 
2. The project will not have significant adverse environmental impact or demonstrative negative aesthetic effect. 
 
3. All feasible measures mitigating adverse environmental impacts have been included, and there are no 

economically feasible alternatives, which would have less adverse environmental impact. 
 
4. This approval is based on the staff report dated April 14, 2015, and findings made by the Planning 

Commission with respect to the project. Your project was approved based on the proposed design of the 
project and your acceptance of these terms and conditions imposed. 

 
5. The terms of approval include any representations made by you or your representatives in any writing or plans 

submitted to the Town of Breckenridge, and at the hearing on the project held on April 21, 2015 as to the 
nature of the project. In addition to Commission minutes, the audio of the meetings of the Commission are 
recorded. 

 
CONDITIONS 

 
1. This permit does not become effective, and the project may not be commenced, unless and until the applicant 

accepts the preceding findings and following conditions in writing and transmits the acceptance to the Town 
of Breckenridge. 

 
2. If the terms and conditions of the approval are violated, the Town, in addition to criminal and civil judicial 

proceedings, may, if appropriate, issue a stop order requiring the cessation of work, revoke this permit, 
require removal of any improvements made in reliance upon this permit with costs to constitute a lien on the 
property and/or restoration of the property. 

 
3. This permit expires eighteen (18) months from date of issuance, on October 28, 2016, unless a building 

permit has been issued and substantial construction pursuant thereto has taken place. In addition, if this permit 
is not signed and returned to the Town within 30 days from the permit mailing date, the duration of the permit 
shall be 18 months, but without the benefit of any vested property right. 

 
4. The terms and conditions of this permit are in compliance with the statements of the staff and applicant made 

on the evidentiary forms and policy analysis forms. 
 
5. Nothing in this permit shall constitute an agreement by the Town of Breckenridge to issue a certificate of 

occupancy for the project covered by this permit. The determination of whether a certificate of occupancy 
should be issued for such project shall be made by the Town in accordance with the applicable provisions 
of the Town Code, including, but not limited to the building code. 

 
6. Driveway culverts shall be 18-inch heavy-duty corrugated polyethylene pipe with flared end sections and a 

minimum of 12 inches of cover over the pipe. Applicant shall be responsible for any grading necessary to 
allow the drainage ditch to flow unobstructed to and from the culvert. 

 
7. At the point where the driveway opening ties into the road, the driveway shall continue for five feet at the 

same cross slope grade as the road before sloping to the residence. This is to prevent snowplow equipment 
from damaging the new driveway pavement.  
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8. Applicant shall field locate utility service lines to avoid existing trees. 
 

9. An improvement location certificate of the height of the top of the foundation wall and the height of the 
building’s ridge must be submitted and approved by the Town during the various phases of construction. The 
final building height shall not exceed 35’ at any location. 

 
10. At no time shall site disturbance extend beyond the limits of the platted building/site disturbance envelope, 

including building excavation, and access for equipment necessary to construct the residence. 
 

11. All hazardous materials used in construction of the improvements authorized by this permit shall be disposed 
of properly off site. 

 
12. Each structure which is authorized to be developed pursuant to this permit shall be deemed to be a separate 

phase of the development. In order for the vested property rights associated with this permit to be extended 
pursuant to Section 9-1-17-11(D) of the Breckenridge Development Code, substantial construction must be 
achieved for each structure within the vested right period of this permit. 

 
PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMIT 

 
13. Applicant shall obtain an encroachment license agreement for any retaining walls and vegetation 

within the town right-of-way and make any modifications requested by the Town streets and 
engineering departments. 

 
14. Applicant shall submit proof of ownership of the project site.  
 
15. Applicant shall submit and obtain approval from the Town Engineer of final drainage, grading, utility, and 

erosion control plans. 
 

16. Applicant shall provide plans stamped by a registered professional engineer licensed in Colorado, to the Town 
Engineer for all retaining walls over four feet in height. 

 
17. Any exposed foundation wall in excess of 12 inches shall be finished (i.e. textured or painted) in accordance 

with the Breckenridge Development Code Section 9-1-19-5R. 
 

18. Applicant shall identify all existing trees, which are specified on the site plan to be retained, by erecting 
temporary fence barriers around the trees to prevent unnecessary root compaction during construction. 
Construction disturbance shall not occur beyond the fence barriers, and dirt and construction materials or 
debris shall not be placed on the fencing. The temporary fence barriers are to remain in place until issuance of 
the Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

19. Existing trees designated on the site plan for preservation which die due to site disturbance and/or 
construction activities will be required to be replaced at staff discretion with equivalent new trees, i.e. loss of a 
12 inch diameter tree flagged for retention will be offset with the addition of four 3-inch diameter new trees. 

 
20. Applicant shall submit and obtain approval from the Town of a construction staging plan indicating the 

location of all construction material storage, fill and excavation material storage areas, portolet and dumpster 
locations, and employee vehicle parking areas. No staging is permitted within public right of way without 
Town permission. Any dirt tracked upon the public road shall be the applicant’s responsibility to remove. 
Contractor parking within the public right of way is not permitted without the express permission of the 
Town, and cars must be moved for snow removal. A project contact person is to be selected and the name 
provided to the Public Works Department prior to issuance of the building permit.   

 
21. The public access to the lot shall have an all weather surface, drainage facilities, and all utilities installed 

acceptable to Town Engineer. Fire protection shall be available to the building site by extension of the Town's 
water system, including hydrants, prior to any construction with wood. In the event the water system is 
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installed, but not functional, the Fire Marshall may allow wood construction with temporary facilities, subject 
to approval. 
 

22. Applicant shall submit and obtain approval from Town staff of a cut sheet detail for all exterior lighting on the 
site. All exterior lighting on the site or buildings shall be fully shielded to hide the light source and shall cast 
light downward. Exterior residential lighting shall not exceed 15’ in height from finished grade or 7’ above 
upper decks. 

 
23. Applicant shall submit to and obtain approval from the Department of Community Development a 

defensible space plan showing trees proposed for removal and the approximate location of new 
landscaping, including species and size. Applicant shall meet with Community Development Department 
staff on the Applicant’s property to mark trees for removal and review proposed new landscaping to meet 
the requirements of Policy 22 (Absolute) Landscaping, for the purpose of creating defensible space. 
 

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY 
24. Applicant shall revegetate all disturbed areas with a minimum of 2 inches topsoil, seed and mulch. 
 
25. Applicant shall submit a final HERS Confirmed Home Energy Rating Report prepared by a registered 

Residential Services Network (RESNET) design professional using an approved simulation tool in 
accordance with simulated performance alternative provisions of the town’s adopted energy code, 
showing that the completed house has a HERS Index number. 

 
26. Applicant shall remove leaf clutter, dead branches and dead standing trees from the property, dead branches 

on living trees shall be trimmed to a minimum height of six (6) feet and a maximum height of ten (10) feet 
above the ground. 
 

27. Applicant shall remove all vegetation and combustible material from under all eaves and decks. 
 

28. Applicant shall create defensible space around all structures as required in Policy 22 (Absolute) Landscaping. 
 

29. Applicant shall paint all garage doors, metal flashing, vents, flues, rooftop mechanical equipment, meters, and 
utility boxes on the building a flat, dark color or to match the building color. 

 
30. Applicant shall screen all utilities. 

 
31. All exterior lighting on the site or buildings shall be fully shielded to hide the light source and shall cast light 

downward.  Exterior residential lighting shall not exceed 15 feet in height from finished grade or 7 feet above 
upper decks. 

 
32. At all times during the course of the work on the development authorized by this permit, the permittee shall 

refrain from depositing any dirt, mud, sand, gravel, rubbish, trash, wastepaper, garbage, construction 
material, or any other waste material of any kind upon the public street(s) adjacent to the construction site. 
Town shall provide oral notification to permittee if Town believes that permittee has violated this 
condition. If permittee fails to clean up any material deposited on the street(s) in violation of this condition 
within 24 hours of oral notice from Town, permittee agrees that the Town may clean up such material 
without further notice and permittee agrees to reimburse the Town for the costs incurred by the Town in 
cleaning the streets. Town shall be required to give notice to permittee of a violation of this condition only 
once during the term of this permit.  

 
33. The development project approved by this Permit must be constructed in accordance with the plans and 

specifications, which were approved by the Town in connection with the Development Permit application. 
Any material deviation from the approved plans and specifications without Town approval as a 
modification may result in the Town issuing a Stop Work Order and/or not issuing a Certificate of 
Occupancy or Compliance for the project, and/or other appropriate legal action under the Town’s 
development regulations. A Stop Work Order may not be released until a modification to the permit is 
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reviewed and approved by the Town. Based upon the magnitude of the modification, another hearing 
before the Planning Commission may be required. 

 
34. No Certificate of Occupancy or Certificate of Compliance will be issued by the Town until: (i) all work done 

pursuant to this permit is determined by the Town to be in compliance with the approved plans and 
specifications for the project, and all applicable Town codes, ordinances and standards, and (ii) all conditions 
of approval set forth in the Development Permit for this project have been properly satisfied.  If either of these 
requirements cannot be met due to prevailing weather conditions, the Town may issue a Certificate of 
Occupancy or Certificate of Compliance if the permittee enters into a Cash Deposit Agreement providing that 
the permittee will deposit with the Town a cash bond, or other acceptable surety, equal to at least 125% of the 
estimated cost of completing any required work or any applicable condition of approval, and establishing the 
deadline for the completion of such work or the satisfaction of the condition of approval. The form of the 
Cash Deposit Agreement shall be subject to approval of the Town Attorney. “Prevailing weather conditions” 
generally means that work can not be done due to excessive snow and/or frozen ground. As a general rule, a 
cash bond or other acceptable surety will only be accepted by the Town between November 1 and May 
31 of the following year. The final decision to accept a bond as a guarantee will be made by the Town of 
Breckenridge.  

 
35. Applicant shall submit the written statement concerning contractors, subcontractors and material suppliers 

required in accordance with Ordinance No. 1, Series 2004. 
 

36. The development authorized by this Development Permit may be subject to the development impact fee 
imposed by Resolution 2006-05 of the Summit County Housing Authority. Such resolution implements the 
impact fee approved by the electors at the general election held November 7, 2006. Pursuant to 
intergovernmental agreement among the members of the Summit Combined Housing Authority, the Town 
of Breckenridge is authorized to administer and collect any impact fee which is due in connection with 
development occurring within the Town. For this purpose, the Town has issued administrative rules and 
regulations which govern the Town’s administration and collection of the impact fee. Applicant will pay 
any required impact fee for the development authorized by this Development Permit prior to the issuance 
of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

   
 (Initial Here) 
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Project Title:

Proposal:

Project Name and PC#: Liberato Residence Addition PL-2015-0065

Project Manager:

PC Meeting Date:

Date of Report:

Property Owner:

Agent:

Address:

Legal Description:

Area of Site in Square Feet: 28,664 sq. ft. 0.66 acres

Existing Site Conditions:

Class C Single Family Development Review Check List

Build a 1,487 sq. ft. addition to an existing 1,408 sq. ft. single family residence

Liberato Residence Addition

Matt Thompson, AICP

Frank Liberato

Jon Gunson - Custom Mountain Architects

220 Royal Tiger Rd. 

Weisshorn, Block 4, Lot 7

 

April 21, 2015

The property is well buffered and heavily covered in lodgepole pine, spruce, and aspen trees.  There is an 
existing 10' utility easement along the western and northern property lines.  There is an existing wrap 
around driveway with two entrances along Royal Tiger Road.  

April 14, 2015

Areas of Building: Proposed Square Footage Existing Square Footage - If Applicable

Lower Level: 0 sq. ft. 0 sq. ft.

Main Level: 231 sq. ft. 676 sq. ft.

Upper Level: 622 sq. ft. 732 sq. ft.

Accessory Apartment: 0 sq. ft. 0 sq. ft.

Garage: 634 sq. ft. 0 sq. ft.

Total Gross Square Footage: 1,487 sq. ft. 1,408 sq. ft.

Land Use District (2A/2R): 12: Residential

Density (3A/3R): Allowed: unlimited Proposed: 2,261 sq. ft.

Mass (4R): Allowed: 7,166 sq. ft. Proposed: 2,895 sq. ft.

F.A.R.

No. of Main Residence 
Bedrooms:
No. of Main Residence 
Bathrooms:

Height (6A/6R):*

 Drip line of Building / Non-
Permeable Sq. Ft.:

2,440 sq. ft. 8.51%

Hard Surface/Non-Permeable Sq. 
Ft.:

3,978 sq. ft. 13.88%

Open Space / Permeable Sq. Ft.: 22,246 sq. ft. 77.61%

Code Policies (Policy #) 

25 feet overall

*Max height of 35’ for single family outside Conservation District unless  otherwise stated on the recorded plat

1:12.68 FAR

4 bedrooms

3.5 bathrooms

Lot Coverage/Open Space (21R):

Snowstack (13A/13R):
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Required Square Footage: 995 sq. ft. 25% of paved surfaces is required

Proposed Square Footage: 1,124 sq. ft. (28.26% of paved surfaces)

NO

Required:

Proposed:

Fireplaces (30A/30R):

Number of Gas Fired:

Number of EPA Phase II Wood 
Burning:

One existing wood burning stove

Building/Disturbance Envelope?      No Envelope

Architectural Compatibility                   
(5/A & 5/R):

Exterior Materials: 

Roof:

26' Side Yard Setback

15' Rear Yard Setback

Parking (18A/18/R):

2 spaces

4 spaces

1

Setbacks (9A/9R):

Wood board on board (grey), wood trim (brown), 6" "D"-log siding to match existing (brown), stone 
wainscot to match existing (tan-grey), wood fascia to match existing (brown), clad windows (green)

Asphalt shingles (grey/brown)

82' Front Yard Setback

65' Side Yard Setback

Outdoor Heated Space (33A/33R):

The residence is and will continue to be architecturally compatible with the neighborhood and land use 
district. 

Roof:

Garage Doors:

Planting Type Quantity Size

Good existing buffers, no new 
landscaping proposed. 

N/A N/A

Defensible Space (22A): Complies

Drainage (27A/27R): 

Driveway Slope:

Covenants:

Point Analysis  (Sec. 9-1-17-3):      

Staff Action:      

Comments:      

Asphalt shingles (grey/brown)

The proposal is well under the maximums allowed for Policy 4: Mass (aka The Neighborhood 
Preservation Policy).  Maximum size residence the policy allows on this lot is 7,166.  There is no building 
envelope, hence this application was processed as a Class C.  

Staff conducted an informal point analysis and found to reason to warrant negative or positive points.  All 
relative and absolute policies of the Development Code have been met.  

Staff has approved the Liberato Addition, PL-2015-0065, located at 220 Royal Tiger Road, Block 4, Lot 7, 
Weisshorn, with the attached Findings and Conditions.  

N/A

Positive away from residence

4.0 %

Landscaping (22A/22R):

Wood covered insulated doors 
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE 
 

Liberato Residence Addition 
Weisshorn, Block 4, Lot 7 

220 Royal Tiger Road 
PL-2015-0065 

 

 
FINDINGS 

 
1. The project is in accord with the Development Code and does not propose a prohibited use. 
 
2. The project will not have significant adverse environmental impact or demonstrative negative aesthetic effect. 
 
3. All feasible measures mitigating adverse environmental impacts have been included, and there are no 

economically feasible alternatives, which would have less adverse environmental impact. 
 
4. This approval is based on the staff report dated April 14, 2015, and findings made by the Planning 

Commission with respect to the project. Your project was approved based on the proposed design of the 
project and your acceptance of these terms and conditions imposed. 

 
5. The terms of approval include any representations made by you or your representatives in any writing or plans 

submitted to the Town of Breckenridge, and at the hearing on the project held on April 21, 2015, as to the 
nature of the project. In addition to Commission minutes, the audio of the meetings of the Commission are 
recorded. 

 
CONDITIONS 

 
1. This permit does not become effective, and the project may not be commenced, unless and until the applicant 

accepts the preceding findings and following conditions in writing and transmits the acceptance to the Town 
of Breckenridge. 

 
2. If the terms and conditions of the approval are violated, the Town, in addition to criminal and civil judicial 

proceedings, may, if appropriate, issue a stop order requiring the cessation of work, revoke this permit, 
require removal of any improvements made in reliance upon this permit with costs to constitute a lien on the 
property and/or restoration of the property. 

 
3. This permit expires eighteen (18) months from date of issuance, on October 28, 2016, unless a building 

permit has been issued and substantial construction pursuant thereto has taken place. In addition, if this permit 
is not signed and returned to the Town within 30 days from the permit mailing date, the duration of the permit 
shall be 18 months, but without the benefit of any vested property right. 

 
4. The terms and conditions of this permit are in compliance with the statements of the staff and applicant made 

on the evidentiary forms and policy analysis forms. 
 
5. Nothing in this permit shall constitute an agreement by the Town of Breckenridge to issue a certificate of 

occupancy for the project covered by this permit. The determination of whether a certificate of occupancy 
should be issued for such project shall be made by the Town in accordance with the applicable provisions 
of the Town Code, including, but not limited to the building code. 

 
6. Driveway culverts shall be 18-inch heavy-duty corrugated polyethylene pipe with flared end sections and a 

minimum of 12 inches of cover over the pipe. Applicant shall be responsible for any grading necessary to 
allow the drainage ditch to flow unobstructed to and from the culvert. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff has approved this application with the following Findings and 
Conditions and recommends the Planning Commission uphold this decision.  
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7. At the point where the driveway opening ties into the road, the driveway shall continue for five feet at the 

same cross slope grade as the road before sloping to the residence. This is to prevent snowplow equipment 
from damaging the new driveway pavement. 

 
8. Applicant shall field locate utility service lines to avoid existing trees. 

 
9. An improvement location certificate of the height of the top of the foundation wall and the height of the 

building’s ridge must be submitted and approved by the Town during the various phases of construction. The 
final building height shall not exceed 35’ at any location. 

 
10. All hazardous materials used in construction of the improvements authorized by this permit shall be disposed 

of properly off site. 
 
11. Each structure which is authorized to be developed pursuant to this permit shall be deemed to be a separate 

phase of the development. In order for the vested property rights associated with this permit to be extended 
pursuant to Section 9-1-17-11(D) of the Breckenridge Development Code, substantial construction must be 
achieved for each structure within the vested right period of this permit. 

 
PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMIT 

 
12. Applicant shall submit and obtain approval from the Town Engineer of final drainage, grading, utility, and 

erosion control plans. 
 

13. Applicant shall provide plans stamped by a registered professional engineer licensed in Colorado, to the Town 
Engineer for all retaining walls over four feet in height. 

 
14. Any exposed foundation wall in excess of 12 inches shall be finished (i.e. textured or painted) in accordance 

with the Breckenridge Development Code Section 9-1-19-5R. 
 

15. Applicant shall identify all existing trees, which are specified on the site plan to be retained, by erecting 
temporary fence barriers around the trees to prevent unnecessary root compaction during construction. 
Construction disturbance shall not occur beyond the fence barriers, and dirt and construction materials or 
debris shall not be placed on the fencing. The temporary fence barriers are to remain in place until issuance of 
the Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

16. Existing trees designated on the site plan for preservation which die due to site disturbance and/or 
construction activities will be required to be replaced at staff discretion with equivalent new trees, i.e. loss of a 
12 inch diameter tree flagged for retention will be offset with the addition of four 3-inch diameter new trees. 

 
17. Applicant shall submit and obtain approval from the Town of a construction staging plan indicating the 

location of all construction material storage, fill and excavation material storage areas, portolet and dumpster 
locations, and employee vehicle parking areas. No staging is permitted within public right of way without 
Town permission. Any dirt tracked upon the public road shall be the applicant’s responsibility to remove. 
Contractor parking within the public right of way is not permitted without the express permission of the 
Town, and cars must be moved for snow removal. A project contact person is to be selected and the name 
provided to the Public Works Department prior to issuance of the building permit.   

 
18. Applicant shall install construction fencing and erosion control measures in a manner acceptable to the Town 

Engineer. 
 

19. Applicant shall submit to and obtain approval from the Department of Community Development a 
defensible space plan showing trees proposed for removal and the approximate location of new 
landscaping, including species and size. Applicant shall meet with Community Development 
Department staff on the Applicant’s property to mark trees for removal and review proposed new 
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landscaping to meet the requirements of Policy 22 (Absolute) Landscaping, for the purpose of 
creating defensible space. 
 

PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY 
 

20. Applicant shall revegetate all disturbed areas with a minimum of 2 inches topsoil, seed and mulch. 
 
21. Applicant shall remove leaf clutter, dead branches and dead standing trees from the property, dead 

branches on living trees shall be trimmed to a minimum height of six (6) feet and a maximum height of 
ten (10) feet above the ground. 
 

22. Applicant shall remove all vegetation and combustible material from under all eaves and decks. 
 

23. Applicant shall create defensible space around all structures as required in Policy 22 (Absolute) 
Landscaping. 

 
24. Applicant shall paint all garage doors, metal flashing, vents, flues, rooftop mechanical equipment, meters, and 

utility boxes on the building a flat, dark color or to match the building color. 
 

25. Applicant shall screen all utilities. 
 

26. All exterior lighting on the site or buildings shall be fully shielded to hide the light source and shall cast 
light downward.  Exterior residential lighting shall not exceed 15 feet in height from finished grade or 7 
feet above upper decks. 

 
27. At all times during the course of the work on the development authorized by this permit, the 

permittee shall refrain from depositing any dirt, mud, sand, gravel, rubbish, trash, wastepaper, 
garbage, construction material, or any other waste material of any kind upon the public street(s) 
adjacent to the construction site. Town shall provide oral notification to permittee if Town believes 
that permittee has violated this condition. If permittee fails to clean up any material deposited on the 
street(s) in violation of this condition within 24 hours of oral notice from Town, permittee agrees that 
the Town may clean up such material without further notice and permittee agrees to reimburse the 
Town for the costs incurred by the Town in cleaning the streets. Town shall be required to give notice 
to permittee of a violation of this condition only once during the term of this permit.  

 
28. The development project approved by this Permit must be constructed in accordance with the plans and 

specifications, which were approved by the Town in connection with the Development Permit application. 
Any material deviation from the approved plans and specifications without Town approval as a 
modification may result in the Town issuing a Stop Work Order and/or not issuing a Certificate of 
Occupancy or Compliance for the project, and/or other appropriate legal action under the Town’s 
development regulations. A Stop Work Order may not be released until a modification to the permit is 
reviewed and approved by the Town. Based upon the magnitude of the modification, another hearing 
before the Planning Commission may be required. 

 
29. No Certificate of Occupancy or Certificate of Compliance will be issued by the Town until: (i) all work done 

pursuant to this permit is determined by the Town to be in compliance with the approved plans and 
specifications for the project, and all applicable Town codes, ordinances and standards, and (ii) all conditions 
of approval set forth in the Development Permit for this project have been properly satisfied.  If either of these 
requirements cannot be met due to prevailing weather conditions, the Town may issue a Certificate of 
Occupancy or Certificate of Compliance if the permittee enters into a Cash Deposit Agreement providing that 
the permittee will deposit with the Town a cash bond, or other acceptable surety, equal to at least 125% of the 
estimated cost of completing any required work or any applicable condition of approval, and establishing the 
deadline for the completion of such work or the satisfaction of the condition of approval. The form of the 
Cash Deposit Agreement shall be subject to approval of the Town Attorney. “Prevailing weather conditions” 
generally means that work can not be done due to excessive snow and/or frozen ground. As a general rule, a 
cash bond or other acceptable surety will only be accepted by the Town between November 1 and May 
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31 of the following year. The final decision to accept a bond as a guarantee will be made by the Town of 
Breckenridge.  

 
30. Applicant shall submit the written statement concerning contractors, subcontractors and material suppliers 

required in accordance with Ordinance No. 1, Series 2004. 
 

31. The development authorized by this Development Permit may be subject to the development impact fee 
imposed by Resolution 2006-05 of the Summit County Housing Authority. Such resolution implements the 
impact fee approved by the electors at the general election held November 7, 2006. Pursuant to 
intergovernmental agreement among the members of the Summit Combined Housing Authority, the Town 
of Breckenridge is authorized to administer and collect any impact fee which is due in connection with 
development occurring within the Town. For this purpose, the Town has issued administrative rules and 
regulations which govern the Town’s administration and collection of the impact fee. Applicant will pay 
any required impact fee for the development authorized by this Development Permit prior to the issuance 
of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

   
 (Initial Here) 
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MEMO 
 
TO:  Planning Commission  
 
FROM: Tim Berry, Town Attorney 
 
RE:  Shock Hill Overlook Master Plan (PL-2014-0174) 
  Shock Hill Overlook Subdivision (PL-2014-0175) 
 
DATE:  April 16, 2015 (for April 21st meeting) 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 The Shock Hill Overlook Master Plan and Shock Hill Overlook Subdivision applications 
come before the Planning Commission on April 21st for Commissioner comments and final 
decisions. The taking of evidence with respect to both applications was concluded at the 
Commission’s April 7th meeting. Because the taking of evidence has been completed, no public 
comment or testimony should be permitted at the April 21st meeting. 
 
 If either of the Planning Commission members who were absent at the April 7th meeting 
desire to take part in the Commissioner comments and decisions on these two applications Rule 
33.3 of the Planning Commission Rules must be complied with. That Rule provides as follows: 
 

Rule 33.3.  Members Not to Vote Unless Present at Hearing 
 
No Commission member shall vote to decide any application or appeal requiring a 
public hearing, unless he or she has attended the final public hearing on the 
application or appeal, or he or she has: (i) listened to the tape(s) of the final 
hearing or appeal, (ii) reviewed all relevant application materials; and (iii) has 
stated his or her compliance with the requirements of (i) and (ii) on the record 
prior to voting. 

 
 I will be present at the meeting, and happy to discuss these applications with you. 
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Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Subject: Town Project Hearing- Summit County Recycling Center Drop Off 
 (Town Project Hearing – PL#2015-0051) 
 
Proposal: Construct a new twenty four hour recycling center drop off facility to replace the 

existing facility on County Road 450.  
  
Date: April 14, 2015 (For meeting of April 21, 2015) 
 
Project Manager: Julia Puester, AICP, Senior Planner 
 
Applicant: Summit County Government 
 
Owner: Town of Breckenridge 
 
Address: 284 Coyne Valley Road 
 
Legal Description:  Unsubdivided- McCain Annexation Phase I Reception No. 714272, 67.6 acres 

(excluding Tract A, Reception No. 491971, 9.9 acres), McCain Annexation Phase II 
Reception No. 714274, 35.2 acres including 25 acres reception No. 703129  

 
Land Use District:  43: Recreational, Open Space, and Governmental Uses, Mining, Existing 

Residential and Service Commercial  
 (Maximum 1:20 and Structural Type by Special Review) 
 
Site Area:  Recycling Center Area: 1.72 acres (75,000 square feet) 
 Total Site Area of McCain property: 127.8 acres (5,566,968 square feet) 

Site Conditions: The site is a benched area, fairly even with the roadway with a steep downward 
slope to the north. The Blue River lies approximately 300’ east of the project site 
on the property.  The southern 20’ of the project site is occupied by a utility 
easement including high pressure gas, communications, and electric lines. The 
easement also contains above ground gas pipe line, gas system valves, markers 
and vents, and a metal structure. Several utility pedestals and an electric switch 
cabinet also lie within the 20’ utility easement. The remainder of the site is 
primarily covered in sparse grasses, with a few young lodgepole pine on the 
bench’s northern end, as well as lodgepole pine and aspen along the western 
embankment below the benched site.  

Adjacent Uses: North: McCain property South: Coyne Valley Rd, Commercial  
 East: McCain property, Highway 9 West: Residential (Red Tail Ranch) 
   

Item History 

The McCain property is a Town owned parcel approximately 127.8 acres located north of Coyne Valley 
Road on the west side of Highway 9. The property was mined extensively beginning in the mid 1900s 
and intermittently through 2011. Because of the historic dredge mining, the one mile stretch of the Blue 
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River within the McCain property flows primarily under the cobble rocks. This stretch of river is 
planned to be restored by the Town over the next several years, with work anticipated to begin this 
summer. 
 
A portion of the property is leased to Alpine Rock for their concrete plant and for material and aggregate 
storage. The property is also used by the Town for storage of construction material and a 500 KW solar 
garden (on approximately 3 acres) that was constructed in 2013. There are also several tenants with 
leases, primarily for construction and storage yards. There is also a large pit where Alpine Rock mined 
for aggregate up until 2011. The mining permit is now inactive and there is no further mining activity 
planned on the property. 
 
In 2013 the Council approved a Master Plan for the McCain property. The Plan established two distinct 
Tracts. Tract 1 is approximately 90 acres and allows open space as well as Governmental Uses including 
solar gardens, snow storage, overflow parking, recycling facilities, water treatment facilities, water 
storage/reservoir, and public works storage. A solar garden has already been constructed within Tract 1 
and the Town is currently considering this property for a new water treatment plant. Tract 2 is 
approximately 38 acres along the western edge of the property along the Blue River, and is planned for 
open space and trails, as well as the river/habitat restoration. This portion of the site proposed for the 
recycling center is located in Tract 1 and has been identified as a good location for a recycling center.  
The Town is currently working with a consultant (Norris Design) to develop a more detailed plan for the 
entire McCain property.  
 

Staff Comments 

Land Use (Policies 2/A & 2/R): The proposed recycling center is consistent with the McCain Master 
Plan Governmental Uses approved in 2013. Staff has no concerns. 
 
Site and Environmental Design (7/R): The recycling facility is located on an existing benched area of 
the McCain property off of the intersection of Coyne Valley Road and Airport Road. There is a 30 inch 
concrete wall designed to “sink” the recycling containers down slightly on the north side of the wall.  
This will reduce views of the containers from the Coyne Valley Road along with proposed landscaping 
and two foot berm. This stepped design is “user friendly”, allowing the public to access the containers 
without the need for catwalks or stairs as in the existing County Road 450 site. Due to the industrial use 
of this site- moving recycling containers in and out of the stepped wall design and potential spills, there 
would be many difficulties of cleaning and maintain a wall faced with natural materials such as rock or 
timber as encouraged by this policy. The wall is 90-120 feet away from the property line.  In this case, 
staff finds that this policy is not applicable. Does the Planning Commission concur? (Should the 
Planning Commission disagree, staff recommends the Commission assign -2 points under policy 7/R.) 
 
Access / Circulation (16/A & 16/R; 17/A & 17/R): The drive isle is one way only. The driveway is off 
set from Denison Placer Road due to the existing high pressure gas line venting on the property. Since 
the driveway is one way only, the Engineering Department does not see a conflict with the Denison 
Placer intersection. The driveway exit at the Airport Road/Coyne Valley intersection will have a stop 
sign for exiting vehicles.   
 
The site is split into a publicly accessible front of house section and back of house operational section. 
In the public section (south), the public drives into the site, parks along the north of the drive isle and 
exits their vehicles, dropping off the recycling in various containers in the cross hatched pedestrian only 
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section marked ‘no parking’ on the plans.  Signage and striping will be installed along the parking isle to 
distinguish the parking from the pedestrian only area. 
 
Parking (18/A & 18/R): There is no specific parking requirement for a recycling center use. Based on 
the current site use and project usage, the applicant is comfortable with the 14 spaces provided. Staff has 
no concerns. 
 
Landscaping (22/A & 22/R): Existing trees have been preserved to the east and west of the site. 
Additional trees have been proposed to provide screening from Coyne Valley Road and the eastern 
portion of the site which would be visible from Highway 9. Proposed landscaping includes: 15 aspen 
(1.5-2 inch caliper); 6 narrow leaf cottonwood trees (1.5-2 inch caliper); 33 blue spruce (8-10 feet); and 
16 bristlecone pine (6-8 feet). 55 shrubs are also proposed. The addition of top soil will be needed for 
the site. Irrigation will be provided to new landscaping. Staff has no concerns.  
 
Fences, Gates, and Gateway Monuments (47/A): A fence is allowed per the exemption in Policy 47/A 
(C) (10) Fencing at public improvement projects proposed by the Town. The proposed fence is a 6 foot 
tall cedar fence with cedar cap (fence in the lower left corner of the fence detail attachment). This fence 
is intended to provide the operational back of house operations with screening from the McCain 
property below as well as from the public right of way. In addition, the fence will assist in preventing 
any loose materials from being blown off the site.  Chain link gates are proposed at either end of the 
back of house entry points adjacent to containers to prevent general public access. Staff would prefer to 
have wood slat inserts at the gates. Since this fence and gate will separate the public from the back of 
house operations for safety, security and to provide a wind buffer, staff is supportive of the fence and 
chain link gates with wood slat inserts.  The applicant has provided additional fence examples in the 
packet should the Planning Commission prefer one of the alternative fence designs. 
 
Storage (14/A & 14/R): Storage for commercial storage is required to be screened. The proposed fence 
achieves this and staff has no concerns.  
 
Drainage (27/A & 27/R):  The site naturally drains west to east across the site. A portion of Coyne 
Valley Road discharges to the project area, flowing west to east along Coyne Valley Road in an informal 
ditch within the utility easement. The proposed drainage runs on the south side of the public driveway 
access and along the rear fence to the north. Both drainage ways lead to a water quality pond which then 
discharge to rip rap spillways on the east side of the site and ultimately flow down the vegetated 
embankment toward the river. The Engineering Department is in support of the drainage plan.  

 
Snow Removal and Storage (13/A & 13/R): The snow storage provided exceeds the code requirement. 
Snow storage is shown to be located in one large area within the fence in the northern section of the site. 
Staff has no concerns with this configuration since this area is internal to the back of house operations 
and machinery will be able to move the snow on site.  Snow storage is also along the public drive isle.  
Staff has no concerns with the snow storage configuration.  
 
Utilities (28/A): All utilities running to the site will be underground. Irrigation will be provided to the 
site for landscaping.  The Town Council voiced concern at a work session that future equipment, 
technology or lighting could require electricity to the site. No electric has been proposed to the site. 
 
Exterior Lighting (Sec. 9-12): No lighting is proposed. The Town Council voiced concern at a work 
session regarding a potential need for lighting for public safety reasons as this facility will be open 
twenty four hours a day.  
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Architectural Compatibility (5/A &5/R): A shed is depicted on the north portion of the site plan. Staff 
has not received any details on the shed. Should a shed be proposed in the future, it must meet Policy 5 
and a Class D permit will be required.  
 
Point Analysis (Section: 9-1-17-3): Staff finds no reason to assign any negative points to this project 
and finds that Policy 7/R is not applicable with regard to the wall surface material. The application was 
found to meet all Absolute policies.  
 

Staff Recommendation 
 
This is a Town Project pursuant to the ordinance amending the Town Projects Process (Council Bill No. 
1, Series 2013). As a result, the Planning Commission is asked to identify any concerns with this project, 
and any code issues and make a recommendation to the Town Council.  
 
Staff suggests that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Summit County Recycling 
Center Drop Off  (PL#2015-0051) located at 284 Coyne Valley Road with a passing point analysis of 
zero (0) and the attached Findings.  
 
We welcome questions during the meeting on Tuesday evening.  
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Town Project Hearing

Project:  Summit County Recycling Center Drop Off Positive Points 0
PC# 20150051 >0

Date: 4/15/2015 Negative Points 0
Staff:   Julia Puester, AICP <0

Total Allocation: 0
Items left blank are either not applicable or have no comment

Sect. Policy Range Points Comments
1/A Codes, Correlative Documents & Plat Notes Complies
2/A Land Use Guidelines Complies
2/R Land Use Guidelines - Uses 4x(-3/+2)
2/R Land Use Guidelines -  Relationship To Other Districts 2x(-2/0)
2/R Land Use Guidelines - Nuisances 3x(-2/0)
3/A Density/Intensity Complies
3/R Density/ Intensity Guidelines 5x (-2>-20)
4/R Mass 5x (-2>-20)
5/A Architectural Compatibility / Historic Priority Policies Complies
5/R Architectural Compatibility - Aesthetics 3x(-2/+2)
5/R Architectural Compatibility / Conservation District 5x(-5/0)

5/R
Architectural Compatibility H.D. / Above Ground Density 12 
UPA

(-3>-18)

5/R
Architectural Compatibility H.D. / Above Ground Density 10 
UPA

(-3>-6)

6/A Building Height Complies
6/R Relative Building Height - General Provisions 1X(-2,+2)

For all structures except Single Family and Duplex Units outside 
the Historic District

6/R Building Height Inside H.D. - 23 feet (-1>-3)
6/R Building Height Inside H.D. - 25 feet (-1>-5)
6/R Building Height Outside H.D. / Stories (-5>-20)
6/R Density in roof structure 1x(+1/-1)
6/R Broken, interesting roof forms that step down at the edges 1x(+1/-1)

For all Single Family and Duplex Units outside the Conservation 
District

6/R Density in roof structure 1x(+1/-1)
6/R Broken, interesting roof forms that step down at the edges 1x(+1/-1)
6/R Minimum pitch of eight in twelve (8:12) 1x(0/+1)
7/R Site and Environmental Design - General Provisions 2X(-2/+2)
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Site Design and Grading 2X(-2/+2)
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Site Buffering 4X(-2/+2)
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Retaining Walls 2X(-2/+2) Not applicable

7/R
Site and Environmental Design / Driveways and Site Circulation 
Systems

4X(-2/+2)

7/R Site and Environmental Design / Site Privacy 2X(-1/+1)
7/R Site and Environmental Design / Wetlands 2X(0/+2) 

7/R
Site and Environmental Design / Significant Natural Features 2X(-2/+2)

8/A Ridgeline and Hillside Development Complies
9/A Placement of Structures Complies
9/R Placement of Structures - Public Safety 2x(-2/+2)
9/R Placement of Structures - Adverse Effects 3x(-2/0)
9/R Placement of Structures - Public Snow Storage 4x(-2/0)
9/R Placement of Structures - Setbacks 3x(0/-3)
12/A Signs Complies
13/A Snow Removal/Storage Complies
13/R Snow Removal/Storage - Snow Storage Area 4x(-2/+2)
14/A Storage Complies
14/R Storage 2x(-2/0)
15/A Refuse Complies

15/R
Refuse - Dumpster enclosure incorporated in principal structure 1x(+1)

15/R Refuse - Rehabilitated historic shed as trash enclosure 1x(+2)

15/R
Refuse - Dumpster sharing with neighboring property (on site) 1x(+2)

16/A Internal Circulation Complies
16/R Internal Circulation / Accessibility 3x(-2/+2)
16/R Internal Circulation - Drive Through Operations 3x(-2/0)
17/A External Circulation Complies
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18/A Parking Complies
18/R Parking - General Requirements 1x( -2/+2)
18/R Parking-Public View/Usage 2x(-2/+2)
18/R Parking - Joint Parking Facilities 1x(+1)
18/R Parking - Common Driveways 1x(+1)
18/R Parking - Downtown Service Area 2x( -2+2)
19/A Loading Complies
20/R Recreation Facilities 3x(-2/+2)
21/R Open Space - Private Open Space 3x(-2/+2)
21/R Open Space - Public Open Space 3x(0/+2)
22/A Landscaping Complies
22/R Landscaping 2x(-1/+3)
24/A Social Community Complies
24/R Social Community - Employee Housing 1x(-10/+10)
24/R Social Community - Community Need 3x(0/+2)
24/R Social Community - Social Services 4x(-2/+2)
24/R Social Community - Meeting and Conference Rooms 3x(0/+2)
24/R Social Community - Historic Preservation 3x(0/+5)

24/R
Social Community - Historic Preservation/Restoration - Benefit +3/6/9/12/15

25/R Transit 4x(-2/+2)
26/A Infrastructure Complies
26/R Infrastructure - Capital Improvements 4x(-2/+2)
27/A Drainage Complies
27/R Drainage - Municipal Drainage System 3x(0/+2)
28/A Utilities - Power lines Complies
29/A Construction Activities Complies
30/A Air Quality Complies
30/R Air Quality -  wood-burning  appliance in restaurant/bar -2
30/R Beyond the provisions of Policy 30/A 2x(0/+2)
31/A Water Quality Complies
31/R Water Quality - Water Criteria 3x(0/+2)
32/A Water Conservation Complies
33/R Energy Conservation - Renewable Energy Sources 3x(0/+2)
33/R Energy Conservation - Energy Conservation 3x(-2/+2)

HERS index for Residential Buildings
33/R Obtaining a HERS index +1
33/R HERS rating = 61-80 +2
33/R HERS rating = 41-60 +3
33/R HERS rating = 19-40 +4
33/R HERS rating = 1-20 +5
33/R HERS rating = 0 +6

Commercial Buildings - % energy saved beyond the IECC minimum 
standards

33/R Savings of 10%-19% +1
33/R Savings of 20%-29% +3
33/R Savings of 30%-39% +4
33/R Savings of 40%-49% +5
33/R Savings of 50%-59% +6
33/R Savings of 60%-69% +7
33/R Savings of 70%-79% +8
33/R Savings of 80% + +9
33/R Heated driveway, sidewalk, plaza, etc. 1X(-3/0)

33/R
Outdoor commercial or common space residential gas fireplace 
(per fireplace)

1X(-1/0)

33/R Large Outdoor Water Feature 1X(-1/0)
Other Design Feature 1X(-2/+2)

34/A Hazardous Conditions Complies
34/R Hazardous Conditions - Floodway Improvements 3x(0/+2)
35/A Subdivision Complies
36/A Temporary Structures Complies
37/A Special Areas Complies
37/R Community Entrance 4x(-2/0)
37/R Individual Sites 3x(-2/+2)
37/R Blue River 2x(0/+2)
37R Cucumber Gulch/Setbacks 2x(0/+2)
37R Cucumber Gulch/Impervious Surfaces 1x(0/-2)
38/A Home Occupation Complies
39/A Master Plan Complies
40/A Chalet House Complies

-55-



41/A Satellite Earth Station Antennas Complies
42/A Exterior Loudspeakers Complies
43/A Public Art Complies
43/R Public Art 1x(0/+1)
44/A Radio Broadcasts Complies
45/A Special Commercial Events Complies
46/A Exterior Lighting Complies
47/A Fences, Gates And Gateway Entrance Monuments Complies
48/A Voluntary Defensible Space Complies
49/A Vendor Carts Complies
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TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE 
 

Summit County Recycling Center Drop Off 
Unsubdivided 

284 Coyne Valley Road 
PERMIT #2015-0051 

 

FINDINGS 
 

1. This project is “Town Project” as defined in Section 9-4-1 of the Breckenridge Town 
Code because it involves the planning and design of a public project. 

 
2. The process for the review and approval of a Town Project as described in Section 9-14-4 

of the Breckenridge Town Code was followed in connection with the approval of this 
Town Project. 

 
3. The Planning Commission reviewed and considered this Town Project on April 21, 2015, 

scheduled and held a public hearing on April 21, 2015, notice of which was published on 
the Town’s website for at least five (5) days prior to the hearing as required by Section 9-
14-4(2) of the Breckenridge Town Code.  At the conclusion of its public hearing, the 
Planning Commission recommended approval of this Town Project to the Town Council.   

 
4. The Town Council’s final decision with respect to this Town Project was made at the 

regular meeting of the Town Council that was held on April 28, 2015. This Town Project 
was listed on the Town Council’s agenda for the April 28, 2015 agenda that was posted 
in advance of the meeting on the Town’s website. Before making its final decision with 
respect to this Town Project, the Town Council accepted and considered any public 
comment that was offered. 

 
5. Before approving this Town Project the Town Council received from the Director of the 

Department of Community Development, and gave due consideration to, a point analysis 
for the Town Project in the same manner as a point analysis is prepared for a final 
hearing on a Class A development permit application under the Town’s Development 
Code (Chapter 1 of Title 9 of the Breckenridge Town Code).   

 
6. The Town Council finds and determines that the Town Project is necessary or advisable 

for the public good, and that the Town Project shall be undertaken by the Town. 
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SUMMIT COUNTY RECYCLE CENTER
FENCE CHARACTER IMAGES
APRIL 21, 2015

horizontal with gaps

vertical with highlighted posts and caps

horizontal with different size slats

horizontal with gaps at top only

-64-



SUMMIT COUNTY RECYCLE CENTER
CROSS-SECTION
APRIL 21, 2015

PARKING

DUMPSTER
3.5’ TALL WALL

4:1 SLOPE

DRIVE LANE SWALE
PEDESTRIAN

AREA NATIVE BUFFER2’ TALL BERM COYNE VALLEY ROAD

COYNE VALLEY ROAD

CONT

DENISON PLACER RO

LIMIT OF WORK

CONCRETE RETAINING WALL, RE: CIVIL
RECYCLE CONTAINERS

GATED RAMP

SWALE

GATED RAMP

LIMIT OF WORK

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

CHAIN LINK
ILEVER GATE

6' CEDAR
PRIVACY FENCE

6' CEDAR PRIVACY FENCE

RIP RAP

RIP RAP

20' GAS
EASEMENT

COUNTY / STAFF ACCESS

PUBLIC ACCESS

SECTION AA
SCALE: 1”=10’

A

A

SECTION KEY MAP
SCALE: NTS

0 5 10                    20

GABLE TOP RECYCLE CONTAINER EXISTING IMAGE
SCALE: NTS

RECYCLE
CONTAINER

8’-4”

-65-



 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Julia Puester, Senior Planner 
 
DATE:  April 15, 2015 (for meeting of April 21, 2015) 
 
SUBJECT: Approved Class C Subdivision Quarterly Report (Q1-2015) 
 
 
Section 9-2-3-3 of the Breckenridge Subdivision Code authorizes the Director to review and approve Class C 
subdivisions administratively without Planning Commission review.  “Administrative Review: The processing of a 
class C subdivision application shall be an administrative review conducted by the director. No public hearing 
shall be required”. (Section 9-2-3-3 B) 
 
Class C Subdivisions are defined as follows: 
 
“CLASS C SUBDIVISION: A subdivision of structure(s) into separate units of interest, including, but not limited 
to, condominiums, timeshare interests, cooperatives, townhouses, footprint lots in conjunction with an approved 
master plan, and duplexes when done in accordance with a previously approved subdivision plan, site plan, 
development permit or site specific development plan; the modification or deletion of existing property lines 
resulting in the creation of no additional lots (lot line adjustment); an amendment to a subdivision plat or plan 
which does not result in the creation of any new lots, tracts or parcels; or the platting or modification of 
easements, building envelopes or site disturbance envelopes. A class C subdivision application may be 
reclassified by the director as either a class A or class B subdivision application within five (5) days following the 
submission of the completed application if the director determines that the application involves issues which make 
it inappropriate for the application to be processed administratively as a class C application”. 
 
The Subdivision Code indicates that the decision of the Director on Class C Subdivisions shall be forwarded to 
the Planning Commission:  
 
“D4. Decision Forwarded to Planning Commission: All of the director's decisions on class C subdivision 
applications which are not appealed shall be forwarded to the planning commission for its information only”. 
 
As a result, we have included a list of the Class C Subdivisions that have been approved since you were last 
updated in January of 2015.  If you have any questions about these applications, or the review process, we would 
be happy to answer. Otherwise, no discussion on this matter is required.  
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Permit # Project Name Address Description Approval Date Planner 
PL-2015-

0043 Giller Subdivision 306 South Ridge Street 
Resubdivide the duplex building at 306 S Ridge Street to create two saleable 
properties in the form of a condominium map. 03/23/2014 Mosh 
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MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Julia Puester, Senior Planner 
 
DATE:  April 15, 2015 (for meeting of April 21, 2015) 
 
SUBJECT: Approved Class D Major Single Family Homes Quarterly Report (Q1-2015) 
 
 
Effective January 1, 2014, Section 9-1-18-4-1 of the Breckenridge Development Code authorized the Director to 
review and approve Class D Major applications for single family or duplex structures outside of the Conservation 
District administratively without Planning Commission review. For an application to be classified as a Class D 
Major development permit, the property must have a platted building or disturbance envelope and warrant no 
negative points under Section 9-1-19 Development Policies. Staff regularly reports recently approved Class D 
Major development permits to the Planning Commission. This is the fourth report to the Commission since the 
ordinance became effective. 
 
As a result, we have included a list of the Class D Major development permits that have been approved since we 
last reported to you in January of 2015. If you have any questions about these applications, the reporting, or the 
review process, we would be happy to answer. Otherwise, no discussion on this matter is required.  
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Permit 

# 
Address Project Name Description Approval 

Date 
Planner 

PL-
2014-
0162 

157 
Riverwood 
Dr 

Henderson Addition 
and Remodel 
(Riverwood Lot 14) 

524 sq. ft. addition to and 
remodel of existing single 
family residence. 

2/17/2015 Shane 
Greenburg 

PL-
2015-
0006 

45 Luisa Dr 
& 53 Luisa 
Dr 

Columbia Lode Lots 4-
5 

New duplex (5 bed, 6 
bath), 3,778 sq. ft. density, 
4,915 sq. ft. mass. 

2/2/2015 Matt 
Thompson 

PL-
2015-
0013 

102 & 106 
Luisa Dr 

Columbia Lode Lots 
12-13 

New duplex (6 bed, 7 
bath), 4,955 sq. ft. density, 
6,133 sq. ft. mass. 

2/11/2015 Michael 
Mosher 

PL-
2015-
0021 

53 Long 
Ridge Dr 

Berry Residence 
(Highlands Park Lot 22) 

New single family home (4 
bed, 5.5 bath), 4,848 sq. ft. 
of density, 5,987 sq. ft. 
mass. 

2/27/2015 Matt 
Thompson 

PL-
2015-
0022 

998 
Discovery 
Hill Dr 

Timney Residence 
(Discovery Hill, Lot 
127) 

New single family home (5 
bed, 4 bath) 4,302 sq. ft. of 
density, 5,139 sq. ft. of 
mass. 

2/27/2015 Matt 
Thompson 

PL-
2015-
0023 

496 
Corkscrew 
Dr Corkscrew Flats Lot 30 

New single family home (4 
bed, 4.5 bath), 3,413 sq. ft. 
of density, 4,029 sq. ft. 
mass. 

3/17/2015 Shane 
Greenburg 

PL-
2015-
0030 61 Luisa Dr Columbia Lode Lot 6 

New single family home (3 
bed, 3.5 bath), 2,310 sq. ft. 
density, 2,976 sq. ft. mass. 

3/30/2015 Michael 
Mosher 

PL-
2015-
0039 

61 Iron Mask 
Rd 

Brenner Residence 
(Shock Hill Lot 28) 

New single family home (6 
bed, 7 bath), 6,401 sq. ft. 
density, 7,367 sq. ft. mass. 

3/27/2015 Matt 
Thompson 

PL-
2015-
0040 

115 Victory 
Ln 

Rosin Residence 
(Warrior’s Preserve Lot 
6) 

New single family (3 bed, 
3.5 bath), 2,924 sq. ft. 
density, 3,913 sq. ft. mass. 

3/17/2015 Matt 
Thompson 

PL-
2015-
0041 114 Luisa Dr Columbia Lode Lot 11 

New single family (4 bed, 
3.5 bath), 2,898 sq. ft. 
density, 3,612 sq. ft. mass. 

3/30/2015 Michael 
Mosher 

PL-
2015-
0054 

25 Silver 
Green 

Brownson Addition 
(Wellington Block 4, 
Lot 22) 

582 sq. ft. addition to 
existing single family 
residence. 

3/26/2015 Shane 
Greenburg 
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